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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA
CONSOLIDATED STATERMENT OF FINANCIAL RPOSITION
as at June 30, 2017

{Amounts in US doflars repraseniing the funclional and prasentation currency of the Group. Amounis in RON are
providad for informalion pumpoeses enly (see Nols 2a})

Notes  Jupe 30,2017 mg%‘féﬂi Jums 30,2017 ———’QWMM 3
uso uso RON RON

Intangipte assets k] 7,558,830 7,265,762 30,171,069 28,601,289
Goaodwill 4 82,871,708 82,871,708 330,782,416 330,782,416
Propenty, plan and equipmant 5 1.119,368,049 $,135,146,913 4,4B7.957.568  4,542,813,403
Availatia for sala investimenis 7 18,583 18,583 7A74 74,174
Long-tesmn recalvable 1,604,312 £,480, 824 6,403,811 50,089
Dolormad tax assal 13 83,468,670 63,486,579 253,334,834 253234834
Tolat non current assats 1,474 g 19530 1 5080723672 51
Inventeras, net B 226,157,044 230,081,565 802,705,842 018,410,482
Trado and other recelvables g 380,035,870 287577488 1,556,828,176  1,147,865.544
Dativalive financlal Instruments 285 401,671 5,340 1.603,270 21,315
Cazh and cash equivelants 10 8,807,345 35810288 27.174.518 £3,106.805
Totaf carrent resals 533,401,930 5334 1 2480308905  2,129.404,140
TOTAL ASSETS LB2673727 LEZOARSIE  L281421.296
Shara capltal 11 1,463,323,897 1,483,323,887  5,840,857,335  5,840,857,335
Shem premium 11 74,050,518 74,058,518 295,572,643 295,572,643
Qihar rasarves 1" {2,738,264) {3,452,149) {10,928,781) {13,779,253)
Othar reservas - Hybrld instrument 1" 1,000,000,000 1,005,000000  3,991,500,008  3,901,500,000
EHeat of transfes with agully holdamns 11 (556,632,659) (595,032,850} (2,082,257,558} (2,382,257 550)
Accumulaled logses (1.473,245,438) (1,529,216,646) {5880,463,149} (6,104,267,320)
Current yaar rasi (8,C87,780) 58,070,210 (32,282,413 223,804,240
f&“gg;:‘r}{"’““"‘“ to equity baldars of 456,469,266  AG3843471 1LEZLSOT0TT  1,851,430,017
Non-Controlling [iiarest 15,838,745 14,781,091 83,220,351 £8,558,725
Totel equity 472.:398.011, 478,624,262 1085217428  1,910428,742
Long-term bommaditgs from banks 12 . 193,162,805 - 771,009,335
Dolarmd tax liablillas 13 306,570 306,570 1,223,674 1,223,674
Provisiong 16 74,881,195 76,429,343 209,287,439 306,067,723
Qthar non-current fabfities 19073 177110 759.076 705.935
Total non-tusrant lisbilitias 75477928 210,076,698 301270189  1,07B.007.668
Teade and othar payables 14 879,855,508 TBO.571,875 3511943284  3,147,583.848
Darvativa Hinancial Instrumsnls 29.5 . 323,130 . 1,289,773
m‘!‘;;’;‘;;‘a':g:s"‘gs from shatehctders 15 233730100 266,253,960 932945702  1,070.735.716
Short-erm borowings Irom banks 15 236,917 423 20,560,258 845,655,895 83,375,489
Total current Habflitles LI50:505,040 1.070.007.0)2 5300644861 4302904816
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

SHAREHOLOERS' EQUITY ) lBoa2q1.9a8  LAWRINY 199  ZEILORAAYE 7281421204

CATALIN DUMITRU

PRESIDENT of the BOARD of DIRECTORS

M VASILE.GABRIEL MANOLE
UTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

; e

Tha eccompanying nales fom § to 30 ara an Inlegeal part of thaso consolidnted financlal sialsmants,
English mnsiation Is for infarmation pumoeses only, Romenlan languepa text is the officlal taxt lor submission
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ACMPETROL RAFINARE SA

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

{for the year ended st June 30, 2017
{Amounis in US doffars reprasenting 1he funclional and prasentaffon currancy of the Group. Amounts in RON arg
provided far Information pumoses only (sas Nota 2a))

Revanuas

Cost of sales

Groas profit

Selling, ganaral and admintstrativa
expenses, including logisile cosls
Other operating
incoma/{expenses), nat

Operating profit
Finance cost
Finance income

Forelgn exchanga gain / {lass),
nel

Profit/{Loss} bafors income tax
income lax

Profit/{Logs) for the yenr
Altributabis to:

Equity holdars of the pareni
Non-Gonirolling intetests

Eamings par share (US
cents/shara)

Basle

CATALIN DUMITRU

Notes

17
18

18

20
21
21
21

23

25

dung 30, 2017 Jupe 30,2016  June 39,2017 June 30, 2016
usp LSD AON AON

1.274,423,444  1,163,144,118  5,086,861,177  4,602,774,746
(1,175922,508) (1,033,407,093) {4,693.696291) (4,124,844,413)
20,500.535  119737.025 393184886 47793033
{8B,165,448) (76,802,289}  {351,912,378)  {313.741,076)
{2,900,402) 1,317,335 {11,576,954) 5,258,142
144,587 42,352,081 29,675,554 188,647,358
{28,805,803) (20,774,261 (14,578,365} (82,020,464)
15,135,581 4,634 264 60,417,663 18,497,665
{380,525) {3,B808,78%) {1,518,866) (15,202,702}
(85150861 225032 {26404035)  39.821.898
{415,070} (471,982) {1,656,752) {1.883,918)
(7,030,136} 22,031,313 (28,060,787} §7.837.082
{B,087,780} 21,460,887 {32,282,413) 85,660,328
1,057,654 570,628 4,221,626 2,277,654
{D.018) 0.049 (0.072) 0.198

PRESIDENT of the BOARL of DIRECTURS

EDIL UTEKOV
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

e

VASILE-GABRIEL MANDOLE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

(WD

The accompanying nates om 3 o 30 am an integat part of these consalidated Anancla) stalomants,
&ngish translatlen Is for information pumposes onfy, Romaenian fanguags text 1s the officlal text for subwmission
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 8t June 30, 2077

{Amounts in US dollars reprasenting the functions! and presentation curtency of the Groug, Amounts in RON are
provided for information purpeses only (see Noto Z28))

June 30, Juna 30, June 30, Juna 30,
217 2016 2017 2016
Uso usb RON RON
et Gelnf{Loss} for the year {7.030.136) 22031313 (28,060,707t  B7.037.982
Other compretiensive income
Headga reserva 713,885 {878,704) 2,840,472 (3,507,347}
Other comprehensive income {lozs) for the o
yesr, net of Inx 713,885 {870,704} 2849472 (3,507,347
Totel camprehanglve joss for the year, net
of tax 8,316,251 21152608  {25211.315)  D4.430.635
Attrbulabls to:
Equity halthers of the parant (7,373,905) 20,581,983 {28,432,841) 82,152,981
Non-Cantrofling interests 1,057,654 570,626 4,221,626 2,277,654
Totat comprehensive loss for the year (8,315,251} 21152600 (25211315 84,430,635
GATALIN DUMITRU Z
PRESIDENT of the BOARD of DIRECTORS
/‘EDIL UTEKQV VASILE-GABRIEL MANDLE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FRNANCIAL GFFICER

.

7 Mouts

The accompanylng nates I 1 lo 30 kre an ldegral part of these congolidated fnaneia) stafements.
Engish trensiation [s for Infermalion pemposes enly. Ramanion tanguage taxt is the officls taxt far submission
&



ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for tha year anded at June 30, 2017

{Amounts in LS dollars raprasanting the functionsl and presentation currancy of the Group. Amounts in RON ara

provided for Information puposes only {see Note 2a))

Profiti{Loss] before [ncome tox

Adjusimants for:

Dapraclation and amortisation

Provisions {or racaivables and inventodes (inc! wila-ofl)

Impalrment for propery, plant and equipmant (incl wits.

olf)

Lata paymant interes!

Othar finenclal Inzoma

inlergst income

{nlorest expansa and bank chemges, nel

tnraalised gains rom darivallves

{Gafn¥Loss on sale or disposal of propedy, plant and
equipmen

Unraafised lorign axchangs (galn)foss

Cash genaraled from aperstions hefore working
capltal changes

Nat working capiial changes ©

Receivables snd prapayments

Ivantaries

Trada and cther payablas, Including changes in
payeblas for eagital sxpendituras

Change in worldng capitst

Cash paymants for dyrlvrtivas, nat
Nat exsh provided byf{used in) operating activities

Cash flows from Invasting activitles

Purchasa of proparty, plant and enuipment
Purchass of imanglbla nssels

Procesds frosm sale of propery, planl and equipmant
HNeat cash used In Invasiing sctlvities

Cush flows from linancing activilies

QGash pooling movamant

Short - term loans {repaid Lo}/ receivad from
shareholdars

Short - torm foans/ {ropald 10 receivad from banks, not
IniBrast end bank shargas pald, ngt

Nat cash used In finuncing activities

Increses ! {Docranse) in cash end cash equivalonts
Ceoh and cach equivslents at the beglanlng of
pariod

Cuzh and cash equivalants st

of thi pardod

CATALIN DURITRU
PRESIDENT of the

YEDIL UTEKOV
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

June 30, Junre 28, Juns 38,

2017 2036 dung 30, 3017 2018

UsD usp RON RON
{5,615,086) 22503285  (20,304,005) 69,621,898
47,129,956  4B,33065% 188,119,223 192,911,826
3,185,051 {483,778 12753054 (1,830,075
. 26,581 . 106,098
54,280 8,956 256,610 25,748
{159,582) {17,801} {836,802 {834,845)
(14977,018) (4462663} (50780771}  {17.812,72M)
27,951,332 20,062,408 111,867,742  BD079,102
. 201,000 - 802,252
{219,134) {123,042) {674,678) {491,002)
8,505,044 4,487,300 33,069,050 13919558
64,877,855 58,379,151 256,960,415 356,755,860
(318,000,528} {152,501,040) (1,260,658,343) (809,067,135)
1,089,980  {31,703,484) 4,870,825 [126,544.408)
27B326,007 70,820,886  1,110,046,808  316,805.061
{38,692,451) {104,473,648) {154,440,312) (417,006,570)
{6,575) Q'%hﬁﬂ) {22,257) IS.'i'“IS.EG“Elzml
25,170,398 (16,520,457] 104,495,945  (G5.565,350)
(20,650,485) 15,385,148  {114,358,417)  61,306.007
{74,505) {150,434) [297,386) {600,458)
245,558 121,935 985,733 285,943
(20,478,033 15330704 (113,G70070) 61,192,512
17,910,862 95,457,239 71,431,605 145,510,080
{26,519,208) 4,604,858  (105851,411) 18,380,391
2PBIOA23  (18,627,117) 81,323,217 {79,139,938)
{20.075967)  (15,580,745)  {63.725572)  {S2.266,382)
(6,704,760 5635235  (26,762,181) 22,408,040
(5,002,253 4,438,452 (35.935285) 17,420,194
5,810,208 8,727,078 63,106,803 26,951,138
TRt
©,807,345 11,166,551 oFATI,EIE | 44,671,330

VASILE-GABRIEL MANOLE
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

1Rk

Tho scgbamanying nolas from 1 fo 30 arm en inlegral part of heso consolidaled Ananclal stiomonts,
Ergfish translation Is for Informntien purposes ooly FHomanian 2nguaga taxt ks e officlal tex dor submisslon
B
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounts in US dofiars represanting the functional and presantation cusrancy of the Group. Amounts in AON are
provided bor Information purposes enly (see Nole 2a))

1. GENERAL

Rompelro] Rafinara S.A. {hereinalter referred to as “the Parent Company” or *the Company” or “lha
Parant” or "RRC") Is a company incorporated under Romanian [aw, Tha Parant Company oparates
Petromidia and Vega refinaries. Petromidia rafinery, located on the Black Sea coast, procasses
exclusively, imported crude oil and produces E.U. slandard moter fuels, other petraleum products and
cerlain patrochemicals. Patromidia reflnery was deslgned and bullt during 1875-1977 and was further
modemized in the early 1930's and from 2005 to 2012,

Rompetrol Ralinare S.A and its subsidiaries (hersinaftar referred to as “the Group™) are invoived in
refining, petrochemicals and downstream activities, and have all production facilitles located In Romanla
(s Nota 7.a). The numbar of employees of the Group at the end of June 2617 and Decamber 2015 was
1,828 and 2,114 raspactivaly,

The raplsiered address of Rompstirol Rafinare S.A. is Bd. Navedari no., 215, Navadarl, Constanta,
Romanis. Rompetro! Ralinare §.A, and its subsidiarias are part of KMG Imemational N.V. with lis
registerad addrass located al World Trade Centre, Strawlnskylaan 807, Towar A, 8th floor, 1077 XX
Amsterdam, the Netherlands.,

The Group's ulllmate parent company Is “National Welfare Fund Sammuk Kazyna® JSC, an entlly with its
headnuarters in Kazakhstan and owned by the Kazakh Stata,

The Company is & joint stock company listed an the Bucherest Stock Exchange.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
@) Basls of preparation and statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with Infemational Financiat Reperting
Standards (FRS"), eflective as of Juns 30, 2017, as endormad by the European Union {"EU,

The consalidated financial stalemenis are prepared undar tha historical cost convenlion axcapt for
derivative financial instrumants and available-for-sate (AFS) financial assets that have been measurad a1
falr value.

The consofideted financlal statemenis provide comparative information in respact of the previnus period.

b} Eoing concamn
The linancial statements of the Group ara prapared on a gelng concem basis,
¢) Ehangas in accounting pollcies

The accounting policles adopted are consistent with those of the pravious financial year.

Engizh transintien Is far Information purpasas only. Remenion lanpuags tan |s the official taxt for subaisskon,
)



ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounta in US doliars epresenting tha funclional and prasantations currency of the Group, Amounls in AON arg
provided for informailon purposas only fses Nole 2a))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES {continued)
d} Standards iszued but not yet effective
The Group has not adepled ahead of schedule the following standardsfintarpratalions:

e IFRS 9 Financial Ingtrumaents - Classilication end measurement
The standard is effecliva for sanuat periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early
application permitted. The final varsion of IFRS 9 Financial Instrumants reflacts all phasas of tha
tinanelal instruments praject and replaces 1AS 38 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measuremant and all previous versions of {FRS 8. Tha standard Introduces new requiremants for
classification and maasurement, impaiment, and hedge accounting. The Group is i the procsess of
assessinp the Impact of this amendment ta the linanciat pesition or parformance of the Graup.

° IFRS 18 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Tha standard is elfective for annual parlods baginning on or after 1 January 2018. IFRS 15
astablishes a five-step modat thal will apply to revenue eamed from & contract with a cusiomer
{with limited exceptions}, regardiass af the typa of revenue transaction or the industry. The
standard's requiremenis will also apply to the recognition and measuremant of gains and losses on
the sale of sume nor-financial assets that are not an output of the entity's ardinary activitles {a.g.,
salas of property, plan! and equipment ot inlangiblas), Extensive disclosures wifl be required,
including disaggregation of total ravenwe; infermation about performance ohligations; changes in
contract assel and fiability account balances betwean pariods and key Judgments and esfimales,
The Group has concluded on the prefiminary assessment performed on this new standard, thal no
significant Impact will have on the Graup’s linancial pesiion or perlormanca.

° IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Clerifications)
The Claritications apply for annual periods baglnning on or afler 1 Janvary 2018 with earlier
application parmitted. The cbjective of the Clarificatlons Is to clarify tha IASE's Infentions when
davsloping the requirements in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customars, pattisulary the
accounting of idantitying performance obligations amending ihe wording of the “separataly
identitiable” princlple, of principal versus agent conglderalions Including the assessmant of
whethar an anlity Is a principal or an agent as wall as applications of control pringiple and of
fieensing providing additional guidance for accounting of intellectual property and royaitias, The
Clarifications alsa provide additional practical expadients for entitles that alther apply IFRS 15 fuliy
retrospectively or that elect io apply the moditiad ratrospective approach. These Claritications
have not yel been endorsad by tha EU. The Group is in the process of assassing the impact of this
new standard on the Group's financlkal position or performance,

+ IFRS 16: Lenses, The standard is elactive for annual pariods beginning on or aftar 1 January 2014.
{FAS 16 sals out the princlples for the recognilion, maasuremont, presentalion and disclnsure of
lsases for both parties 1o a contract, L.a. the customer {'lessae’) and the supplier {{sssor'). Tha new
standard requires lessess lo recognize most leasas on thalr lingnclal stalements, Lasgees will have a
single accourting modet for all leases, with centaln examplions. Lessor actolnling Is substantially
unchanged. The standard has not been yel endarsed by the EU. The Group s in the process of
assessing the Impact of this amendmant on the Group's financlal position or pedomanse.

« IFAS 2: Classification and Measurement of Share based Payment Transactions {Amendmerts)
The Amandments are eifective for annual periods baginning on or after 1 Januery 2018 with
earlier application pammitiad. The Amendments provide requirsments on the accounting for the
eHects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-safiled shara-based
paymenls, for share-based payment ransacticns with a nel settemsnt feature for withholding tax
obligations and for modifications ta the terms and cenditions of a share-based payment that
¢changes the classlfication of the transaction from cash-setiled to equity-sattied, These
Amentdments have not yat been endarsed by the EU. The Group s In {he process of assessing the
impact of this amendment on the Group's Hinancial posltion or perdomance.,

Engllsh tranatation ts for inforrmion purposas anly, Rumentzn enguage 1ex is tha officlel tox for submizsien
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOH THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounts In US dollars roprasenting the functionsl gnd presentation currency of tha Group. Amounts In RON are
providad for information purposes only {ses Note Za))

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

+ [AB 40: Translers to Investment Properly (Ameandmaents). The Amendmanis are aflective for
annual pariads beginning on or alter 1 January 2018 with sarlier application permitied. The
Amendmanis clarily when an enfity shouid transier praperty, including property under construction or
development into, or out of investment praparty. The Amendments stale that a change In use occurs
whan the properly maats, or teases lo maal, the definition of investiment propedy and there is
avidance of tha chargs In use. A mere change in managsment's Intentions for the use of a propery
does not provide evidance of a change In use. Thesa Amandments hava not ye! been endorsed by the
EU. The Group is in (he process of assassing the impaet of this amendmant an the Graup's Hnancial
position or performance.

a |FRIC INTERPRETATION 22: Foreign Currency Transactlons and Advance Considaration The
Intarprelation is eflaclive for anrual parlads beginning on or afler 1 January 2018 with earlior
application pamniiigd. The inlarpratation clarifies the accounting for ransactions that include the
receipt or payment of advanca consideration in a forsign currancy. The Inlerpretation covars foraign
currency transactions when an enlily recognizas s non-monatary asest or & non-maonatary Hablity
anising from the payment or recelpl of advance consideration before the entlty recognizes the related
asset, expense or incoms. The Interpretation states that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of
determining tha exchange rale, is the date ol inital recognition of the non-monstary prepayment asset
or deferred income liabliHy. If there are multiple paymanis or recaipts in advance, then the entity must
determing a date of the transactions for each paymanl or recelpt of advance consideration. This
Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU. The Graup is In the process of assessing the
impact of this emendment on the Group's inanclal posilion or pardformance.

» The JASE has issued the Annual Impravemente te IFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle, which is a collsction
ol amendments to IFRSs, The amendments ere effective for annual paricds beginning on or aflar 1
January 2017 for IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and on or alier 1 January 2018 for
IFAS 1 Firsi-ima Adoption of Intermational Financial Reporing Standards and for IAS 28 Invesimanis
in Associales and Join! Ventures. Earlier application Is permiliad for 1AS 28 Investiments In Assoclales
and Joint Venluras. Thase annual improvemants hava not yat been endorsad by the EU, The Group is
in the process of assessing the impact af this amendment on the Group's financlef positien or
periormance.

) Forelgn cirrency translation

The group's prasentation cumency Is the US Doltar {or “USD™ that is the furctional currancy of the Parent
and is tha currency of the primary ecanomis enviranment and industry in which the Group operatas,

Transactions and balsncas not already measured in USD, and that are measured in HON or other
curranclas, have boen re-maasurad In USD as follows:

M nd fiabjlitl

Cash and cash equivalents, recelvables, payabiss and short<arm loang have been translated into USD at
the year-and exchange rate. Gain or lass on translation of these assels and liabliilies is recorded in tha
income statemant.

on-moneata Is an il

Non-menetary assels and llabilities are translated from thalr historical cost or valualion by applying the
sxchangs rate USD/RON from the dale of acquisition, valuation or contribution 1o the statement of
financial position.

Engfish translafion s {or INomazlon purposas only. Hamardan [anguaga joxt Is the olficial taxt for sulmisslon,
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AOMPETROL RAFINARE S5A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amaunts n US doflars reprasanting tha functional and presertation currency of tha Group. Amounts in ADN am
provided for informalion puiposes anly (s Note 20))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cantinuad)

Consalidalad siatement of incoma

Consolidatad statement of Income items have bean transtated applying the exchange rate from the manth
when the ilems wera inllially recorded o tha consolidalad incoma siatemant,

Exchange gains and losses arising on the re-measuremant that are nio! denominated in USD are credited!
charged to tha consolidatad Income Statement for the year,

Othgr matiors

In Fomanla, the olficial exchange rales are published by the National Bank of Romania {*Cantral Bank” or
“Natlopat Bank"}, and are considered to be a reasonable approsimation of market exchange rates.

Tha translation of RON denominated assels and llabiifles into USD for the purpose of these consolidated
financial slalemants doss not indicate that the Group coutd realize or settle in US dolars the repontad
valugs of these assats and Habllities. Likewise it doas not indicata that the Group could relain or distribule
{he reporled USD values of equity to its shareholders,

Romanian tet trznstation lor Infgrmation purposes basis

Amaunts In Romanian isl are provided {or information purpose basla only and are translated by
mutiiplying the values in UBD with the 30 June 2017 tlosing exchange rats of RON 3,9915= USD 1, for
both 2017 and 2048 amounts,

{} Slgnificant accounting judgmenis, estimatas and assumplions

The peparation of the Group's conselidated financial statements regulres managament to make
judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expanses, assets
and Hebiililes, and tha diselosure of contingan! abllities, al tha reporting date, The estimates and
associeted assumptlions ere based on histotical axpsrience and other Iaclors that are considared 1o be
relavant, However, uncertainty about these assumplions and estimates could result in culcomes thal
require an adjustmant to the carrying amount of the assats or lisbllitles afiected in tha luture periads.

The estimales and undsarlying assurmplions are reviawed on an ongolng basis. Revisions to accounting
astimates are recognized in the pariod In which the eatimate is revised if the revislon alfecis only that
pariod o In tha peried of tha revision and filure periods if the revision afiects both current and fulure
pariods.

Tha maiters presented balow am considered to be the most important In undersianding tha Judgments
that arve [nvolved In preparing these consolidatad financlal slatemants end the uncedaintiss that could
impact the amounts reported in the resulls of oparations, finandlal position and cash flows.

Tha kay assumptions conceming the future and other kay sources of estimation uncerfainty at the
raporiing date, that can lead to matesial adjustments to the camying amounts of assels and liabilides
within the nax! linancial year, are described below. Tha Group hased its assumplions and estimates on
parameters avaliable when the consolidated financial statemants were prapared. Exisling circumstances
end assumptions ebout fulure davelopmants, howaver, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond tha control of the Group. Such changes are rellacted in the
assumptions when they oceur,

Engitah treraks i 15 for Information purptsas only Romanien languaga t9xd Is the official ta=t {or submiselon,
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounis in US doliars represanting the functianel and presentation currency of the Group, Amounis in RON are
grovided for informalion purposes only (see Nota 2a)}

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFIDANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
- Impalment of Goodwil on acquisitions

The Group's impalrment test for goodwill is based on {air value less cosls to solt caloulations that use a
discounted cash flow madal. The cash flows ara detived from the budgst for the next five years and do
not include resteucturing activittes that the Group is not yet committed o undertaka. The recoverable
amount [s most sensiiive to tha discount rale used for tha discountad cash How moda) a5 wall as the
expaecled future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapalation purposas {Nole 4},

- Impaiment of non- linanclaf assets

The Group assesses at each raporting date whether thera is an Indication that an assat may be impalred,
It any indicallon exlsts, or when annual impafrment testing for an esset is required, the carrving amaunts
tor major property, plant and equipment are lested for Impaimment. H assels are delermined to be
impaired, tha carrying amounts of those essels are wrilten down lo their recavarable amount, which is
higher of falr valus less costs to sall, and value In use delerminsd as the amount of estimatad discounted
future cash flows, Impalmments, except those related 1o geodwill, are reversed as appliceble 1o the extent
that the events or circumstances that triggered the original impaiiment have changad. Estimalas of fulure
cash flows ara hased on management estimales of fulure commodity pricas, market supply and demand
and preduct margins. Other factors that can lead o changes In astimates Includs restructuring plans and
varizllon In regulatory anvironments. The recoverabla amount Is sensilive [o the discount rate used for the
discounted cash fow model, as wall as the axpected fulure cash inflows and the growih rals used for
extrapalalion purpases,

Tha hay assumptions usad I determine tha recoverable amount for the dillaran CGUs, includinga
sansHivity analysls, are disclosed and further guplained in Note 4 and Note 5.

- Provision for environmental labiiity

The Group Is involved In refining and patrochemicals, wholesale and retall and othier related servicas.
Environmenial demage caused by such substances may raquira the Group to incur restoration costs to
comply with the relavant ragulalions, and to seitle any lapal or constructive obligation. Analysis and
estimates are pariormed by the Group together with lts technical and legal advisers, in ordar 1o datarmine
the probability, timing and amount Involvad with probabie required outllow of resources. Estimated
restoration cosls, for which dishursements are determined to be probeble, are recognized as & provision
in the Group's financlal slatements. When the final delermination of such oblloation amounts dilfers from
the racognized provisions, the Group's Income statemant is impacted.

Further detalls on provislan for envivonmental liabifity are provided in Note 48,
- Provision for decommissioning
The Group conslders any pravisions for dacemmissioning on aequisition of assets. in dalemmining
the amaunt of the provision, assumptlons and estimates are mada in relation to discount rales, tha
expaciad costs to dismantls and remove the dapot from the site 2nd the expected timing of thase
costs. Ghinges lo these assumptions could have a signiileant impaci on the amount of the provision.
Further detalls on the proviston for decommissioning are provided in Note 16.
- Dalared fax assets
Deferred tax assals ara recagnized for all unused tax losses (o the extent that it Is prababla that taxabla
profit will be available against which the losses can be ulittzed, Signilisant management judgment Is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assels thal can ba recognized, bassd upon tha fikaly
tirving and the lavel of Tuture taxable profits logether with Tulurs tax planning strategles,

Funher details on defarrad tax assets are providad in Noles 13 and 22.

Engtish transiation I for infoamation purpeses onfy, Bomonian lanpuaga text s tha officizt taxt for submizsion,
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES Y0 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounts In US dollars reprasaniing the funcliona! and presemation currency of the Group, Amounts in RON are
provided for informalion purmoses only {sse Nota 2s))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued}
- Carrying velue of rada and other receivablas

Tha Group assesses at each reporling date the requlrement for an aflowance for impalmant in trade and
other receivables. The Company uszes [is judgment, based en tha natura ard gxient of ovardus deblors
and historical exparienca, in order to estimate the ameount of such an alfowance. The sllowance is
recagnizad whate there is objectiva evidencs that a particutar irade racalvable or a group of trade
recaivablas have irmpalred.

«  Garrylng value of inveniorias

The Group considers on a ragular basis the carying valus of inventories In comparisen to expected use
of itams, Impact of damaged or obsolate ilems, lachnical losses and a comparison (o estimated nat
realizable value compared to cost, basad an lalest avaliable information and market conditions. As
applicabls a reserve against the camying value of inventories is made.

~  Pravisian for litigations

The Group analyses iis legal exposura regularly In order fa delermine whather provisions are raquired. in
determining the amount of tha provision, assumplions and estimales are mada in ralafion to the
probability of loslng the case, the expocted clalm to be paid and the expectad timing of the payments.
Changes to these assumptlons could have a signiflcant Impact on the amount of the provisiorn,

Further dalails on the provisions relating to Etigations are provided in Notes 16, 30 and 27,

a) Besis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the linancial statements of the parant company ard its
subsidiaries as at 30 Jupe 2017.

Contral is achieved when tha Group Is exposed, or has rights, la variable relumns fram ils Involverent
with the investee and has the abillty to afiect those raturns through ils power over the investae,
Spacilically, the Group controls an investee if, and only i, the Goup has:
»  Powar ovar the invastes {i.e., axisting rights that glva }l the curtent abliity lo direct the relevant
activitles of the investes);
o Exposure, or righls, to vanable relums from its involvament with the Invesiee;
o The sbility lo use its pawer over the Investes 1o atfact ils returns.

Engish translalion s lar Inforaslion purposes only. Romenian lenguage lextis the oifilat text for submdzsion.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

(Amounts in US doflars representing the functional and presentation cumancy of the Group. Amounts In RON are
providad for information puposas only {sea Note 2a))

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Generally, thers is & presumplion that a majorily of voting rights resull In control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has [ess than & majority of the voling or similar rights of an Investeas,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whather it has power over an
investes, including:

s The cantractual arrangement with the other vota holders of the invastes;

= Righis arising from other contraciuat arrangsments;

= The Group's voting rights and patential voiing rights,

The Group re-gssesses whether or nat It controls an Invesles if facts and circumstances Indicate that
thaera are changes to one or more of the three elemsnts of conirgl,

Consolidation of a subsidiary baegins when the Group ohtains contral over the subskdiary and ceases
whari the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assals, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidlary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included In the consolidated financial statemantis from the
date the Group galns cantrol until the date the Group ceases fo control the subsidiary,

Profit er loas and aach compenent of ather comprahensive Income {OCI) are aitrdbuted to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-contralling Interests, even i this rasults In the hon-
contralling interssts having a deficl befance. When necessary, adjustments ara mada lo the financlal
statements of subslidiasies to bring their accounting polities into line with the Group's accounting policies.

Al intra-group assels and liabitities, aquity, income, expenses and cash flows ralating to transactions
batwaan membars of the Group are efiminated in full on consolidation.

A changa In tha awnership Interest of a subsidlary, withoul a loss of conlrol, is accounted for 8s an equily
transattion.

i & Group loses conbrol over a subsidiary, It derecognizes the ralaled assets {including goodwill),
lisbiiities, non-controliing interest and othar componants of equity whila any resultant galn or loss i=
recognized In profit or loss. Any invastmean! retained is recognizad at falr valus,

h} Busineas enmbinations snd goodwhi

Business combinations sre accourtted for using the acquisition method, The cost of an acquisition s
meacsured as the aggregate of the considaration transtamed, measured at oquisiiicn date falr value and
the emount of any non-controliing intarast In the acquiras, For sach business combinatlon, the acquirer
measures the non-conlvolling Inlerest in the acquires sither at falr value or at the propodionats share of
the zcquirse’s identiflable net assats, Acquisition tosts incurred are expeasad and included in
administrative axpansas,

Whan the Group acquired a business, It assessas the financial assels and liabililies assumed for
appropfizte classification and designation In accordance with the contractual terms, econamic
circumstances and pertinent conditions at the acquisition date,

It the businass combination is achiaved In slages, any praviously held eguity Intarest is remeasured al its
acquisition data fair value and any rasulting gain or loss is recognized In prolit or Ioss.

Goodwill Ia Inkisdly maasurad at cost, being the excess of the aggragate of the considaration transferred
and lhe amourd recognlzed for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest hald, ovar iha net
idantifiable assels acquired and liabiliies assumed. If the fair value of the nel assets acquired Is in axcess
of the aggregate consideration translarrad, the Group analyses whether it has caresctly idantilled all of the
assels acquired and alf of the Hablliles assumed and reviews the procadures used to measure tha
amounis lo be recognized at the acquisition date. If the reassessment stitl resulls In an excess of the {air
value of nat assels acquited over the aggregate consideration transferred, than the gain is recognized in
profit or loss.,

Engilizh tanalalion I3 {or informalion pumoass only. Romanian tanguage tex 1a tho oficlal text lor submigsion
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA
NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounts in US dollars roprasenting the funclional and presantation cunency of the Group. Amounts in AON are
providad for information purpases only (ses Note 2a))

2. SUMBMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Aflar Initlal racognition, goodwill is measwred al cost less any accumulated Impairment losses. For the
purpoge of impalmaent testing, goodwill acquired [n 2 business combination Is, from the acquisilion date,
allocated to each of the Group's cashi-ganerating uniis hal ere expected to bensfit from the combination,
Irespactive of whether other assals or liabililies of tha acquiree ara assigned to those unils.

Whare goodwill has bean allocated to a cash-ganerating unit and par! of the cpsration within that unit is
dispossd of, tha goodwilf associated with the disposed operalion Is Includad in the carrying amount of the
operation when dslennining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposad In these clrcumstances Is
maasurad based on the relalive valuss of the disposed operation and tha poriion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

i} Financial Instromants

A linancial Instrumant is any conlract thal gives rise 10 a financlal asset of ope entily and a financlal
liahliity or equity Instrument of anather antity.

i.  Financial assels
tnitial recognition and mgasurement

Financlal assels ar classified, at inftial resognition, as financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, hald-to-maturity Invesiments, avaflabla-for-sala financial assats, or as dervatives
tiesignatad as hedging instruments in ar effective hadge, &s appropriate. Al financial assels are
eaeagrizad initlally al falr value plus, In the case of financlal asssts not recorded at fair valua through
profit or loss, transaction costs thatl are aliribitabla to the acquisition of the financlal asset.

Subsequent measuramant

For purposes of subsequant measurement financisl aseals are classified in four categorias!

Financial assels ai fair value through proflt or lass

Losny and recelvables at arnorfized cost;

Held-to-maiturty Investimants, al emortizad cost;

Availabla-for-sals financial assets, al falr value with the changas recognized dirsclly in squity;

g & 8 o

Financial rasels at falr value through profit or logs

Fingnclal assets at fair valus through profit or loss include financial assets held for rading and financial
assets dasignated upon initial recognition at fair values through profit or loss. Financlal assels are
classified as held for trading if they ara acquired for the purpose of salling or repurchasing in the near
lerm. Derlvatives, including separated ambedded derivativas, are also classified as held for trading unfess
they are dasignated as eifeclive hedging Instrurnen!s as delined by 1AS 39, The Group has not
deslgnated any financlal assels at fair vatus through prolit or loss. Financlal assets at faly value through
profit or [oss are cared in the stalerent of financial position at fair value with net changss In fair valus
recagnized in the statement of prolit or foss,

Leans snd racefvables

Loans and receivables ara non-derivallve financlal assels with fized or determinable payments that are
not quoted In an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets ara subsequently
maasured at amorised cost using the EIR method, lass impairment. Amontised cost [s ealcutated by
1sklng into account any discount or pramium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
tha elfective interest rate. The effective interest rate amorisation ts Includad in finance Income in the
staternant of profit or lass, The losses arising from impalrment are recagnised In tha statement of profit or
loss In finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operaling axpansas lor receivables.

English ranstalion I5 for Informaticn pumposas only. Romanian languaga iex 15 the officlal taxt {or submission
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE 5A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounts in US volfars representing iha funclionat and presentation curency of the Group. Amounts in BON are
providad for information puposes oaly (sso Nole 2a))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Available for sale financipl assets

Available for sales financial assels include equily investments. These ars classilied as availabla for sale
assals are thoss that are neither classified as hald for trading nar designated al fair value through profit or
logs.

Dabt securilies in [his category are those that are intended to be held for an Indalinite period of ime and
ihat may ba sold in sesponse to needs for lquidity or in respanss lo changes in the market conditions.

After initial measureman, available for sale tinancial assets are subsaequenily measured at {alr value wilh
unreslised galns or losses recognised in other comprehensive income and craditad In the avallabls for
sala assals reserve until the Invesiment is derecognised, al which lime, the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised tn other operaling income, or the Invesiment is detarmined to be impafred, when the
cumulative foss Is reclassified from the avallable for sala asssls reserva to the statemant of profi or loas
in finance costs.

Intarest earned whilst holding avaflable for sale financial asse!s is raporiad as interest income using the
effeclive Interast mts mathod.

The Group svaluates whether the ability and intention to sslf its evailable for sale financlal assals In the
near lerm iz still appropriate. Whan, In rare clrcumstances, the Group is unabla to trada these financial
assals dua to inactive markats, the Group may elect to reclassHy these financlal assats if tha
managament has the abllity and intention to hold the assats far foresesable futura or untll malurity.

For a financial 2ssel reciassifled from the avallable for sale asssls category, the falr valus camrying
amaounl al the date of reclassification bacomes ils new amorised cost and any previous gain or loss on
the asset that has basn recognised In aquity Is amortised to profif or loss over the ramalnlng fila of the
Investment using the ellectiva interest rate. Any difference belween the new amaorised cost and the
matirrity amount is also amostised over the remaining life of the assat using the effeckve interest rate. If
tha asaet is subsequently determined 1o be impaired, then the amount recordat In ety is reclassilied 1o
ihe statemant of profit or foss,

{erecagnition

A financlal asset (or, where applleabie, & part of a financlal assat ar part of a group of similar financiat
assels} Is pimarlly derecognized {l.e., ramoved from the Group's consolidated statement of financlal
positlon) whan:

= Tha nghts to receive cash flows from the easel have expirad

Or
e The Group has Imnsferred its dghls 1o recalve cash flows from the asset o has assumed an
cbligation to pay the received cash flows In fult wilhou! materiat delay lo a third pery undar a 'pass-
through' arangemant; and either (a) the Group has transtarred substantielly all the tisks and
rewards of tha assel, or (b) the Group has neither transfarred nor retained substantially aff the ristks
and rawards of the assat, but bas transferred contral of the assat,

impairment of financial sssets

When the Group has translerred its rights lo receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into & pass-
through arrangement, It evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownarship,
When #t has nelthar transfarred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, nor
transferrad controf of the assel, the Group continuas to recognize the lransferred assal lo the extent of
tha Greup's contimiing involvement. In that case, tha Group also recognizas 2n associated liability. The
transferred asset and the assacialad Bablkily ara mausured on a basis that reflacts the rights and
abligations that the Group has ratained,

English treastation s fur Infermation putppges only. Remanlan language text Iz the officiel taxt lor submlssion,
17



ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2017

{Amatinls In US dellars represanting the lunclionsl and prasentation currency of tha Group. Amounts in RON ars
provided for information pumesss only {see Note 2o0})

2. SUMMARY DF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Group assesses, at each raporting dats, whather thera is objective evidance Ihat & linancial asset or
& group of financial assels Is impalrad. An Impalmment exists if one or more avenls that has occurred
since tha Inftial recognition of the assel {an incurred Joss event'), has an Impact on the astimated Tuturs
cash tiows of the financial asset or tha group of financlal assets that can ba rafiabiy gstimatad. Evidence
of Impalment may includa indications thal the deblors or a group of dablors is experisncing slgniflcant
financlal ditficuity, defaull or delinquency in intarast or principal payments, the probabllity that they will
enter bankmptey or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decraase in tha eatimaled {uture eash flows, such as changes In arrears or aconomic
conditions that eomelate with dalaults.

ii.  Financial lfabilities
initisl recognition and measurament

Financlal liabititles are classilied, at initial recagnition, as financiat lisbliities at fair value through profit or
lass, loans and borrowings, payables, or as dervatives designated as hedgling Instruments in an alfective
hedge, &3 appropriate.

All financlal fabllities ara recognized Inltially at falr valus and, in the case of teans and bomowings and
payables, net ol directly attributable transaction cosis.

The Group's financial liabliitiss include imde and other payables, loans and bommowings Including bank
overdraits end darivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measuremeant

The measurement of financial liablities depands on thelr classification, as describad balow:
»  Financial fiabilities &t lafr valua through profit or loss
o Loans and borrowings at amortized cost:

Barecognition

A financlal lisbilily Is derecognizad when the obligation undar the liability Is discharged or cancetled or
expiras. Whan an existing financiat liahility Is replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially
diierant tarms, or the terms of an existing Habilily are substantielly modified, such an exchange or
modificalion Is treated as the derscognition of the original labifity and ths recegnition of a new liability.
The differance In the respective camying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

. Offselting of financial Instrumenis

Financial assels and financlal fisblifitles are oliset and the nal amount is raported in the consolidated
siaiement of financial pasition if thera Is a curantly enforcasble legal rdoht to oflset the recognized
amounts and thars is an intention o setlle on a net basls, o realize the assets and setfls tha labifilles
simultanacusky.
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AOMPETROL BAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounts n US soltars represanting the funclional and presentation currency of the Group. Amounis in FON are
provided for information purposeg only (sae Note 2a))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
) Propertly, plant and equipment

The inittat cost of praperty, plant and equipment comprises lis purchase price, Including Impant dulies and
non-rafundable purchase laxes and any directly altribntable costs of bringing the asset to Hs working
conditlon and location for iis Inlended use. Expendltures Incurrad after the assels have bean
commissloned, such as repalrs and malntenence are charged (o Income s the perlod in which the casls
are incurmed. In situations whaere it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an
Increass In the fulure aconomic benefits expatied to be oblained from the tsa of an item of property,
plant and aquipmant beyend is originally assessed standard of perdormance, the expandiures ara
capitalized as an edditional cos! of property, plant and equipment,

When assels are sold or ralired, thelr cosl and sccumulated depreclation ara eliminated frem the
accounis snd any galn or loss resulling from thelr disposal Is Included in the incoma statement.

Canstruction in progress repressnts plant and properties under construction and Is stated &t cost, less
any impairment loss. This Includes cost of canstrustion and othar direct costs. Depreciation of these
agsals, on the same basls as other proporty assets, commences when the assels are ready {or thalr
intendad usa.

Depraciation for property, plant and equipment except land and construction In progress Is compuled
using the straight-lina methed over the following estimated useful lives.

Bullidings and othar construciions 10 to 60 years
Storaga tenks 20t 30 years
Tank cars 25 yenrs
Machinery and othar equipmant d 1o 20 years
(Gas pumps 81012 yaers
Vahiclas 5 yoars
Fumiture and office eguipment 3 to 10 years
Crmputers 3 years

Assels held yndar finance leases are recorded in the siatement of financial position and deprecisted over
thair expscted useful lives on the same basls as owned assats, or whera shorter the 1grm of the relevant
lease,

k) inmtangible assels

Intangible aasels are measurad inflially at cost. Intangible assets ara racognized i it is probable that the
fulure economic banefis that are aftibutable to tha assat will flow to the anterpriss; and the tost of tha
asset can be measured refiably. After inlfial recognition, intangtls assels are measured at cost fess
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment lossas. Intangible assets ara amorlized on a
siraight-fine basis aver the bas! estimale of thelr usefu! lives.

Intangible essets eonsist of soliware and llcenses and are amortized on 2 stralight-fine basis overdto 5
years,

Development costs for specilic projecls which are reasanably anticipated o ba recovered fheaugh
commercial activity as well as expenditure on acquired compuiter software lisensas are capliatized and
amorized uslng the straight-ling method over their uselyl fives, genarally 3 years. The carrying amaount of
each infangible asset is reviewad annually and adjusted for Impairment whare it s considered necessary.
External and intemnal cosis specifically associated with the malntanance of alraady existing computer
software programs are expansed as incursd.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAKCIAL STATENENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

(Amounis kn US doliars representing the functional end presenlakon cumancy of the Group, Amaunis in RON are
providad far information purpases oniy {ses Notg Za))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
1) Impairment of non-tinancial agsals

Al each reporting date the Graup reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipmen! and
inlangible assels io datannina whether thers Is any indicatlon that those assels have sullered zn
impairment foss. If any sych indicalion exists, the recovarable amount of tha asset Is astimated in order to
delarming Ihe axtent of the [mpaimaent loss (i any). Whare 1t s nol possible 1o estimate the recovarmable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimatas the recovarabls amount of the rash-generating unit lo
which the asset belongs.

‘The recoverabla amount is the higher of falr value less cosis to sal} and valus in use, In assassing value
in use, the estimated lulure cash flows are discounted to thelr present vatue using a pre-lex discount rate
that reflacts current mariel assessments of tima velua of monay and risks spacific to the asset for which
the estimales of futura cash flows have not bean adjusted.

If the recaverable amount of an asset {ar cash-generating unit} is estimated to ba less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the assels {or cash-generating unil) is reducad io its recoverable amaount,
Impalament losses are racognized as an expense [mmadiately, unless the relavant assat s property, plant
and equipment slated at ravatued amount In which case tha impalmnent loss Is fraated as a ravaluation
decraase.

When an Impaimant lnss subsequently revarses, the carrying amount of the assat (cash-generating unit)
is incraased {o the revisad estimale of ils racoverable amount, but so that the increased carnying amaunt
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been datesnined had no Impalrmant loss been
recagnl2ed for the assat {pash-ganarating unil) In prior years. A reversal of an impalmmant loss is
recognized as incoms immeadiately, unless the relevant assst is carred at & ravalusd amount, In which
case the ravarsal of the impairment foss is Ireated ay a revaluation inceease,

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairnent annually (s at December 31) and when clrcumsiancas indicated that
tha carrying value may be impaired.

Impalrment is determined {or goodwill by agsessing the recoverable amount of aasch cash-generating unit
{or group of cash-ganarating unils} to which the goodwill relates. Whare {he recoverabla amount of the
cash-generating unil s less than thelr carrying amount an impairment loss s recognized. impaiment
losses relaling o goodwill cannol be reversed in future periods.

m) Provislons

Provisions are racaognized when tha Group has a present obligation {fegal or construclive) &s a resuli of a
past avent, it Is prebabla that an outflow of resources smbodying economic baneliis will be reguired 1o
satile the obligation and a reliable astimata of the amount of the obligatian can be made. Whera the
Group expacis some or alf of a provision to be reimbursad, the reimburssment Is recognized as a
soparate assat, bul anly whan the refmbursement is virtually certain. The expanse related to any
provision Is presented in the Income statament net of any relmbursement. If the affest of the time valua of
money is malerial, provisions are discounted using & cumant pra-tax rate thal reflects, where apprapriste,
the risks spacilic to the fablity. When discounting Is used, the increase In The provision duz o tha
passaga of fime Is recognized as & financa cast,

Proviskons are not racognized for futura operaling losses,

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's bes esfimate of the expendilure raquirad
1o setile the present obligation at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Anounls In 1S dollars rapressnting the funclional snd pressntation currsncy of the Graup, Amounis In RON sre
provided for information pupesas only {ses Nota 28))

2. SUMKARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Addillanal commants on the following specific labiltiss are:
- Decommissioning labilily

Becommigsioning cosls are provided at the prasent valua of the expacled costs {o setile the abligation
using estimated cash flows and are recognizad as part of the cost of that particulsr assel. The cash flows
ara discounted a! the cument pra-tax rate that reflacts the risks specills to the decemmissianing liabifity.
The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognized in tha incoma statement as
financa cosis. The estimated {uture sosts of decommissloning are raviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs are added to or deducied from the cost of the assels.

- Environmental liabilities

Environmental expenditure that relates to currant or fulure revenues is expensed or capiialized as
appropriate. Expendilure that relates 1o an existing condition causad by past operations and that does not
contribute to curant or julure eemings 1s expensed,

The Group has an envionmental policy which complies with exisling leglslation and any chilgations
resulting Irom its environmental and operational licenses. in order to comply with all rules and regulations
the Group has set up a monitoring system in accordance with the requirements of the refevant authorilies.
Furtharmore, Invesiment plans ere adjusted o milaci any known future enviranmentat requirements,

Thae above mantioned sxpanses are esiimated based on the relevant anvironmental sjudies,

Liabllities for enviranmantal remedialion costs are racognized when environmsnizl assessments or claan-
ups are probabls and the associated costs can be reasonably estimated. Gangrally, the timing of thass
provisions coincldas with the commitmen) to a {ormal plan of action or, if earlier, on divesiment or on
clesure of inactive sites.

n) Laasea

Tha delemmination of whether an arrangerment is, or contains a 'ease Is based on the substance of the
arrangement al inception dete: whether fulfilimeant of tha arrangement is dependent ontha use of a
spacific asset or assats or the arrangament conveys a right ta use tha asse).

Leeses are classified as finance leases whenevar the terms of the lease transiar substantially alf the risks
end rawards of the ownership to tha lassee, Ali other leases are classilied as operating leases. The
Group has assets held under linance leases and that have been maasured at their lafr values at the date
of acquisition.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of linancla) position as z inance
lease obligation. Finance costs, thal regrasent tha differance between the total feasing commitmanis and
the fair value of tha asssls acqulrad, are charged lo the consolidated Incoma statement avar the tarm of
the relavanl leass so as to produce a constant periodic mte of charge on the remalning bafance of tha
cbligations for sach accounting periad,

Leasad assets are depreciated ovar tha usafu! life of the asset, Howaver, if there is no raasonable
certalnly that the group will obtain ownarship by the end of tha lease term, the assel s depracialed over
the shorler of the estimated uselul life of the asset and the lsase temn.

Operating lsase payments are recognized as an expense in the Income slatement on a sireight fine basis
over the lease termn, nat of any operaling laase incenlives received.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Armounls In US doflars rapgresenting e functional and prasentation cumrancy of the Group, Amounls in RON ars
providgd for infarmation purpeses only (sea Nolg 2aj)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES (continued)

o} Inventarlas

Inventories raw material, petroleumn products, including work-In-process are slated at tha lower of cost
and nel realizable vajue. Net realizabla valus is the selling price In the ordinary course of businass, minus
tha costs of complation, markeling and distribution. Cost comprises the acquisiiion cost and other costs
that have bean incurrad In bringing the Invenlories io their present locatlon and condition and is
delermined by welghted averaga mathod for all the Inventorles.

p) Trade receivables

Trade recaivables are racognized iniflally at falr value and subsequently measured st amortized cost
using the effeclive Interast mathad, ess provision for impaimment, A proviston for Impaisment of trade
recelvables |5 established when there is objaclive avidence that the Group will not collect all ameunts due
according to the origlnal tenms of tha receivables. Significant financlal diffisullies of the deblar, probabllity
thet the deblor will enter bankeupley or financial reorganization and dafault or delinquency in payments
are considared indicators thal the raceivabiz should be impaired, The amount of the provision is the
ditference belwasn the assel's carrying amount and the present value of esfimated fulura cash flow
diszounted at the affective Interest rate.

1) Cesh and cesh equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, cash with banks and checks in course of baing cashed. Cash equivalants
are short-term, highly liguid investments that ara readily converiible to known amounls of cash with
remaining threa months or less to maturily from the dals of acquisition and that are subject to an
Insignificant risk of change In valua.

r} Revenue recogniiion

Raventie comprises the falr value of the sale of goods and services, nat of vafus-addsd tax and any
excise dulies and other sales laxes, rabates snd salss eenlive discounts, Revenua Is recognized 1o the
exlant that it fs probahbie thal the econamic benelits will fow to the Group and tha revenus ¢an be relfably
measured. The Group assesses s revanue arangaments sgainst specific criteria In arder to detarmine if
itis acling as principal or agent. Tha Group has concluded that it Is acting as a principal in all of its
revenus arrangaments, The foliowing specific recognition critaria must also bs met before revenue is
racognized, that the Group:

& Has primary responsibliity for providing the goods or service

Has invanlory fisk

Has discration In establishing prices

Bears the credit risk

{n addition:

- Ealss ol goods are recognized when delivery has taken place and transter of significant risks and
rewards has been complated.

- Revenus from rendsting transportation services and ather services is recognized when services
are randared.

- Intersst income is racognized on & lime-postion basis using the eHiective interest mathod,

- Dividend incorms from Investmants is recognized when tha shareholders' ights o receive
payment have baen establishad,
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AQMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

(Amounts In US dollars repreasnling the funclional end presantalion cummency of the Group, Amounis in AON ara
pravidad lor information puiposes only {saa Nole 2al)

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
s} Interest bearlng Joans and borrowings

All loans and barrowings are inillally racognized at ihe falr value of the consideration recelvad lass directly
attributable transaciion cosls, After initial recogniilon, interast bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured al amortized cost, using the effettive interest method.

Gains and losses are racognized In the income statement when the liabllities are derecognized as wall
through the amortlzation process.

1) Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs direclly aflributable (o the acquisition, construclion or production of an assst that
necessatily lakes & substantial pariod of Ume to get ready for its intended use or sala are capilafizad as
part of the cost of the respactive assals. All the other cosls are expensad In the parlod they occur,

Borrowing costs consist of Interest and other cost that an enlity Incurs In connection with the barmowing of
{unds.

u) Retirement benefit cosis

Paymanis made {o state - managed milrament benelit schemes ara deall with as dafined contribution
plans whare the Group pays fixed contributions into the state-managed fund and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay furthar contributions if the fund doas not hold sulicient assats (o pay all
smployee banefils ralating to amployas service in the curent and prior perdod. The contributions ara
vharged as an expanse in the same perled when tha employee service was renderad,

Under cellsctiva labour agreements in certain of the Group's enlilles, employass are entitled o speciied
ralirement benefits, payable on refiremeant, if they are employed with these entities at the date of thalr
retiremenl. These amounts are astimated as of ihe raporting date based on the following Informations:
appiicable banelits pravided i the agreemant; the number of smployees with tha ralavant Group entilies;
and actuarial assumptions on fulurs liabllities. The defined benefit lizbility as of reporting date comprises
the present value of the delined benafit obligation with the relaled service cost charged to tha incoms
slatement. All actuarial gains and losses are lully recognized in other comprehensive income in the period
In which thay occur for alf deflned beneiit plans.

The Group has Ao other liablittes with respect to fulure pension, health and other costs for its amployees.

v} Taxes
- Currentincome tax

Curen! income tax assets and labifities for the current and prior perisds are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or pald {0 the taxatlon authotities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that ars enacled, by the reparting date, In the countrias whera the Group
opsrates and generales taxable Income,

Current income tax relating to lems recognized directly in equily Is recognized In equity 2nd notin (he
income statement. Management perodically avaluates positions taken in the tax refums with raspaecl 1o
siluations in which applicable tax regulations ara subject to intarpretaticn and aslablishes provislons
whers appropriate,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATERMENTS
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{Amounls in US dollars rapregenting tha luncifonal and presentation eumrency of the Group. Amounis in RON ara
providad for Information puipesas only (sse Nota 26))

2. BUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
- Delarrad lax

Deferrad 1ax is provided using the liability mathod on tamporary differences at the reparting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabflilles and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposas.

Delerrad 1ax liabilities are recognized for alf taxable temporary differances, except:

Where the deferred lax llabilily asises fram the inllial recognition of goodwill or of an assat ot fiability iIn
a transaciion that is not a business comblnalion and, at the tims of the transaction, alfecls nelther the
accounting prafit nor laxable profit or loss

In respect of taxable tamporary difiarances assodlated with Investments In subsidiades, associates
and Interests in Joint ventures, where the tirming of the revarsal of the temporary diflsrences can be
controlled and it Is probable that the temporary dilferances will not ravarse in ths foresasabls futurs.

Defarrad tax assels ara racognized for alt deductible temporary ditlerences, canry forward of unused iax
credits and unused tax losses, {a tha axtant that it is probable that 1axable profit will be avallable against
which the deductibla temporary diferences, and the carry forward of unusad fax credits and nused fax
losses can be utliized except:

Wherms the defemed tax asset relating lo the deductible lemporary difference arises irem tha initial
racognition of an asset or llability In a ransection that is pol & business combination and, at the lime of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

B In respect of deductible temporary differences assoolated with Investments in subsidiaries, associalas
and Inferesls In joint vantures, deferred tax assels are racognized only 1o the axtent that it is probabla
that the temporary dillerences will reverse in the forasaeable fulure and taxable profit will be avallable
against which tha lemperary ditferances can be utilized,

‘Tha carrying amount of deferred tex assals Is raviewed at each reporting date and reducad to the axtent

that it is no longer probabia that sufliclant taxable profit will be avallable 1o allow all or pari of the deferrad
tax assel to be utiizad, Unrecognized delarrad tax assals are renssessed at each reporting date and ae
reeognized to the extenl that It has becomo probeble that fulurs taxable prafits will aliow the delerad lax

asset (o ba resovered.

Deferred tax asests and liablifies are measured at tha tax rates thal are axpactad to apply in the year
when the assel s realized or the llability Is setiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) thal have besn
enatled or subslantively enacted &t the reposiing date.

Deferred tax relating to ilems racognized ocutside profit or lose is recognized autside profit or loss.
Deferad tax ilams are racognized in comelation to the underylng transaction sither in other
comprehensiva income ar directly In equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred 1ax liabilities ars offsat, if a Jegally anforceabls right exisls to set off
currant {ax assais against current Income tax Habilittes and the deferred taxes relals to the same laxably
entity and the samea laxation authority.

Deferred lax liabilities are recognised for taxable lemporary diffarencas arising on lnvestments in
subsidiaries, except whera the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable tha! the temporary diflerance will nol reverse in tha forageeable futura.

- Sales tax

Revenues, expanses and assels ara recognized ne! of the amoun of sales tex axcept:

Where the salss tax incurved on a purchase of assals or services is not recoverable from tha taxation
authority, in which case Whe sales tax is recognized as par of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
pant of the expense llem as applicable

Recelvables and payables thal are stated with the amount of sales tax included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounts in US dolfars reprasenting the functional and presantation currency of the Group. Arsgunis in AON sre
pravidad lor informalion puposes only {see Nata 2a))

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Tha ne:l amount of sales lax racoverabla from, or payable fo, the taxation euthorily is included as pa of
receivabias or payables In tha statemant of financial position,

w) Rividendsa

Dividends are recorded In the year In which they are approved by the sharsholders,

%) Foralgn Currency Transastions

Tha Group transtates its forelgn currency ransactions a2nd balancas Into funclional curancy by applying
to the foraign curency amouni the exchangs rate batween the funclional currency and tha foreign
cuirency at the date of fransaction. Exchange rate differences arising on the setttement of monefary
assals and liabiliffes or on reporting them &t rales ditferant from those at which they wars fnitlatly recorded
during the pariod or reporied In the previous financial statements are recognized In the consalidated
incoma statement in the pariod thay arise.

y} Derlvative Financiat Instruments

The Group enters info conlracls to purchase and sell sruds oil and ol producis at luture delivery datas.
These contracts expose the Group primarily to risks ol changes in fzir value of erude oil and miatad ol
products {commedity risk}. The Group also usas linancial instruments {primarily Options, Swaps and
forwards} to hedge its riska asscciated with the fluctuation of Tareign exchange.

For forsign exchange refated derivatives, ths Groug treals the unrealized part as Derivative Financial
AssalLiabifity in the statement of financial position with correspending impact an financlal charges. The
use of financial dedvatives Is govamned by the Group's palicies approved by board of directors, whith
provide writltan principles on the use of financial dervatives. The Group determinas geinfloss ana nat
basis basad on the daily opan pasitions,

Darivative financial instruments are initlally measurad at falr valus on tha contract date and ars re-
maastred to fair value st subsequent reparting dates,

Changss in alr valuz of dadvative financial instruments that are desfgrated and efiective as hedges of
{utura cash flows ara racognized direclly in squity and the ineffeclive portion s recognizad immediataly in
perlod profit or loss. The Group's policy with respect to hedglng forecasted fransactions is 1o designate it
as a cash flow hedge. If the cash llow hedge of a forecasted transaction results in the racognition of an
agsal or a lisbifity, then a the flima the asset or fabflity is recognized, the associated pains orlosses on
the dervative that had previously been rscognized in equily are Included In the Initial measurement of tha
assel or iability. For hedges thal do nal result in the recagnition of an ssset or Hability, amounts daferred
in equity are recognized in profit or fuss In the same peried in which the hadged items atfacts period profit
orloss.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that do nat quality for hedge aceounting are
racognized in period profit ar loss ag they arise.

For the luture contracts {purchage and sales contracis] that are enterad inlo by the Group lo hedge iis
commedily risk ihs realized and unrealized gains/losses are Includled in Cost of sales for tha period {ses
Mote 18).
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2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

z) Emlssion Rights

€02 amissian rights quota are ellocated to the Group’s refining and patrochemicals operations. For the

pariod 2013-2020 the allowances hava been validatad by Europzan Unlon and are pasted an tha

Romanian Enviranmental Ministry website, Hompetrol Refinery received its quola allocation for 2016 and
the one for 2017 was raceived on February 24, 2017. The Group accounis for the Nabllity resulling from
generating of these emissions using the net Eability mathod. The aciual emissions ara nol expected to
exesed the carificatas which the group has In ils accounts in €02 EU Registar at the lima of annual
complianza {Aprit 2017). The liability is recognlzed only &t a point whara the aclual amissions axeeetd the
quota aflocated lo tha respective group companias. incoma is recagnised only when excass certificalpg

are sold on tha markat.

an) Contlngencies

Contingant linblities are not recognized in 1he consclidated tinancial statemants. They are disclosed
unkzss the possibility of an oulflow of resources ambodying acenomic benefils I5 remote.

A cuntingent asset is not recognized in the financial staternents but disciosed when an Inflow of econpmic

baenaiits is probable.

4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amounts in USD
Softwara Othar %&E&‘m Toua!

Cost
Opaning balanca ag of
1 z?r?uar?‘i, 016 33,528,262 38,536,728 2357408 4,422,388
Additions 2,418 63,718 1,720,316 1,856,450
Transfers from CIP (72,269) 170,836 {98,567 .
Transfers and eclnssiiicalons® - - {26,805} {28,805)
Closing balanca as of Decamber 31, 2016 30.450.411 aMrrLaen 8,073 352
Atditlens BO2 30,444 43,158 74,505
Transafers from GIP 37,861 86,565 {134,426) -
Transfers and reclassificatlons” 638,453 275,306 16,354 930,123
Clesing balance as of Juna 30, 2017 24,138 627 29,173,588 2,847,449 FLAGRETI
Accumulated amontizatlon
?g‘:ﬁ?}?g’gg"‘;a asof {32515882)  (34,703,984) (523,380) (67,743,208}
Chama for the year (552,315} {690,760} - 1,243,075}
ﬁfg;‘;&‘?g" amartizatlon 168,713 {156,713) . .
Clusing telencs as of Dacambar 31, 2016 (523,280
Charge for tha yaar {339,648) (371,812) - {711,550
Closing balanze as of June 30, 2017 33,249 132} {35.925,229} (523,300} {6D.697.841
Net ook valua
As of Decamber 31, 2046 548,927 2217863 #A488.872 7,265,767
Asa of June 30, 2017 BEGA85 2,248,268 2424063 ZESR.630

*) Includas, transfer o propanly, plant and equipmanl, reclassificalions betvean catagones and othar adjusimants;

Engtish translation Is far Information pumoses onty. Fomanian languaes 1a)d 5 the officlal tax for submission.
26



ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

fAmounts in US dollars representing the funclional and proseniation curmancy of the Group, Amounis in RON gre

provided for information purpeses only (sae Nota 2e))

3, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (contlaued)

Major part of “Other” {Intangible Assels) ralates to licenses.

in 2018, eut of the total additions of USD 1.85 million, USD 1.54 million (RON: 6.63 milllon) rafers to
licanses and softwara in refation to equipment for Rempetrol Retinare.

Amounts in HON

Caoat

Oponing balance as of
Japuary 1, 2016

Additions

Transfers om GIP

Transfers and reclassliications®

Closing bolanze as of Dacambar 31, 2616
Additions

Translors lom GIP

Transfars and retlassifications®

Closlng balenes ag of Juns 30, 2017
Accumulatad amorilzation

Qpaning balance es of
Jaruery 1, 2016

Charge for tha yaar

Accumuietad emartization
ol disposals

Ctosling balenca ae of December 31, 2016
Charga lor the yaat

Closing balanca as of June 30, 2017

Vat book vaiea

Aa of Dacembar 31, 2016

As of Juna 30, 2017

Software

133,820,050

9,851
{288,462)

133,549,247
3,800
151,122
2,548,385

136252354

{129,787,143)
{2,204,565)
633,503

£131.358,2051
(1,355,705}

132,732,310}

2391042
2838404

Other

153,819,350

254,322
861,892

154,755,569
121,517
385,439

1,098,884

136,161,404

(138,520,702)
{2,757, 169)
(633,503)

041811464
(1,484 487)

(143,395 951}

12.244,100
12,965,453

Intangibies
inproaress

5,409,594

7,146,046
{393,430)
(105,532

15055218
172,269

{536,561)
55,317

45,256,243

{2,088,071)

{2.082.071)

[2082.071)

12.889.047
13867172

Totnsl

297,657,002
7,410,018

(108,992

204,350,023
267,386

3,712,588
2SZ0.001

{274,397,006)
{4.961,734)

(275.358,740)

(2,840,152}
(278,195,937

22,901,286
40.171.958

English transletlon Is for information purpesas enly, Romanian languapo text is tha ofiiclsl st ior submisslon
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4. GOODWILL

The carrying value of goodwifl as of 30 June 2097 and 31 December 2016 was USD 82,871,705 {(RON:
330,787 418),

The whola carrying amount of goodwill has bean alleealed to Downstraam Remania Cash Generating

Unit (*Downsiream Romanla CBU). Twa othaer cash ganemting units in the Group are: Refinares and
Petrachemicals.

The Downstream Fomania CGU comprisas the ratall and wholesate operations of Romypatro
Downstream SRL and the wholesale activity supporied by the slorage depats owned by Rom Qil 8.4,

Impairment test
Impairment tesls hava baan perlormad by the Group for the earrying valus of goodwill as of 31 December

2016 an tha Downstream Romanla cash generating unite {("CGU"), Based on the Impaliment tast no
impalment has been ldentlfied. For fudher delails see Note &

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Amgunts In USD
Land pad Plant and Vehlclaggnd  Canstrugtion ot
con Buitg] I it i otgl
3.

As of January 1, 2018 134,35t 1188,4482 815 122750847 ZABISTOD 2354142723
Acquisions . 105,865 888,489 58,481,759 56,585,224
Transfors from CIP 11,851,455 12,568,200 4,443,607 (28,883,262} -
Disposals {1,532,984) {9,986,145) {4,086,795) {18,362) (14,635,850}
Translers and (8,347} (25,084} 34431 {118,839) {118,830)
1eclassifications® " ' ¢ Y

As of Dagamber 31, 2016 478,444,385 1,192,084.752 125,430,685 103,305,396  2,308.974.218
Additions - 95,615 417,702 28,137,168 28,650,486
“Transtars from CIP 7,238,398 6,553,233 2,203,840 (15,995,472} -
Disposals - {B42,67D) 578,352 {B36} (265,144)
Trondlom and . (943,072) . {40,058) {683,128)
Ag of June 30, 207 585,582,784 1,196,247,858 120,039,588 115405200 2475376432
Accumulsted dapracialion

& Impalrment

As of Janusry 1, 2016 459,51 1594,733.545) 185,642,158} (28,923,738} {1,178.052.104)
Charge for tha year (26,044,186) {83,416,506} (5.074,257) - {94,534,948)
Accumulaiad daprecialion .

of disposals 576,718 5,853,103 2,302,487 12,622,308
tmpalment . - - {351,877} {351.8™7)
Translers and

reclassifieations” (141,778) 124,973 18,212 . {5a3)
As of Dacember 31, 2016 {4885,122.004) (48,121,975} ($4307.717) (20275600} {1,260497,305)
Charge for the year {13,225,758) {30,398,314) {2,794,226) - (46,418,308}
Accumulated dapreciation R

ol disposals . 218,561 205,759 237,335
As of dune 30, 2017 (498,347,762) (678,303,728} (161,081,284)  (29,275,609) {1.307.008.30%)
b vl 2ol 493.922.561 543.852.777 26831950 74000707  1,138146.913
Ll book value sa o 7,335,022 518,644,130 272 6.1 111 g
Junp 30,2017 467,335,028 518,844,130 27,258,308  $6,130,892

Engish transiation & tor Infermation pumases only. Romankn languaga taxt is the o¥icial text for submissien
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5. PROPERATY, PLANT AND EQUIPRMENT (continued)

Amounts in HON

Land and Fiant and Vehlelss and Construciion Tatal
bylidings gaulpment others Inpoaress ot

Casat
An of January 1, 2006 664307803 4.747.691,08] 480,006,328 294,835,367  9,396,560,578
Acquisiions - 422,963 3945594 233,459,855 237,838,412
Transfarg from GIP 47,305,083 50,165,970 17,788,657 {115,207,710) .
Disposals (6,118,908  (38,899,613) (12,320,958) (79,878}  {58,415,155)
Transtars and 33,317 137, 474
reclassifications’ (33,317} (104,314) 431 {474,348} {474,346}

1 2905460753 47 7 4 41 5,591
Additions . 261,847 1,667,258 112,308,510 114,358,415
Transters from GIF 28,092,070 26,157,230 8,796,027  (83,845527) .
Disposals - (3,383,517 2,308,532 {3,337} {1,058,323)
Eif‘aiﬁn‘iﬁﬁ‘;’m- - (3,764,273} - (159,884) (3,824,156}
As of June 30, 2017 3,834362,833  4,777.617.375 §12,267,459 460,843,851  0.584.401.528
Agcumulatad dapraciation
& impalrmant
As of Junuary 1, 2016 11,834,145,174) 74,078.52 678] [115.445,078] (47054
Gharge lor the year (103,956,388}  (253,126,584) {20,253 ,867) - (377,336,249)
Aceumulated deprecialion
of dlsposals 2,301,970 30,727,611 2,548,812 . 81,579,503
impaimmant . . - [1,404,517) (1,404,517}
Lfcal"“a;’;ﬁ;?: ! {565,907) 488,830 84,710 - (2,357)
Aa-of Dacamber 31, 2018 {1,836.364,470) {2,586 878,063} (302,395,253 (11 93 ER
Charge for the yaar {62,780,613)  (121,334,870) {11,153,552) - (185,279,035)
2?@;;‘;:;‘;‘@" daproclation . 864,403 82,850 - 547,263
As of Juna 30, 2017 (1,989,155,002) (2,707,449.390)  (403,465945) (116,850,50%) (5.216,923.060)
Mm‘:’m;;; 1060086284 2171227424  3DL.080790 295450895  4,542.913,403
Mm! 7o 50, 500 Z! 1,845197,741  2,070.188.045 109501524 343790258  4,467.857,560

in 2017, Transters and Reclassifications of USD 0.983 mililon (RON 3,924 million} represant transfer 1o
iManglbles, reclassifications betwean catagollas and olher adjustmants.

- Censtruction in progress

During 20186, aquipment and other assais in value of USD 6.1 million {2015: USD 6.2 miltion} wara
commissionad In relaon io of Rebranding projact for the mademization of retall stations of Downstream.

In 2016 out of the lolal acquisitions tor construstion in progress the mos! significant refers to the following
profetts in respact al Rompetrol Rafinare SA: Relinery specific aptimisation pragrams amounting to USD
7.65 million, 1SCIR authorisations amounling to USD 4.93 million, Tank rehabilitation amounting to USD
4.3 million and Relinary 2017 tumaround amounting {0 USD 3 million. Part of these projacts have been
transfered 1o the other property, plant and eguipment categories.

Engllah translation s for Inforration purpasas only. Remantsn language laxd s tha officiel 19x) for pubmissisn
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5. PROPEATY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

In 2016 the main projects remaining In construction in progress refars to the {ollowing: Tank rehabililation
amounting to S0 7.9 millian, ISCIR suthorisations amounting o USD 5 miltisn, Rafinery sperific
aptimisalion pragrams amounting to USD 5.8 milion and Ralinary 2047 twurnaround amounting o USD 2.8
milfiar in respect of Bompetrol Ralinare SA.

in 2017 out of the tolal acquisiions for construction in pragrass tha mosi sigaificant refers to the foliowing
projects in respect of Aompstrol Rafinare SA: Hefinery 2017 fumaround amounting to USD 11.04 million
and peltrochemicals in amaunt of USD 2 milion, 1SCIR authersations amounting e USD 4.98 milian,
Tank rahabllitation amouniing to USD 2.55 million, Parl of these projecls have baan tansferred Ip the
olher propasty, plant and eguipment calegories.

- Disposals

{n 2018, oul of the total USD 14,8 millien disposed nssels, USD 9.5 millian refers to changa of calalysts
tor Acmpatrol Rafinare S.A. and US0 4.9 milllon refers fo wrila-0Hs far Rempetrol Downstraam.

- BHomowing costs capitalized
The Giroup is tinancing part of ils oparations from borrowings and hence the eost of thesa borrowings
relaled to gequisilion of qualifying assets |s capilalized as par of the cost of those gualilylng assats. For
the: years ended at 31 December 2016 and 31 Decernber 2015 no loans were 1aken spegifically for
investmants and - no barrowing costs ware capitalized,

~  Disposals through sales of subsidiares and Hquidations
During 2017 and 2016 there was nae disposal of companies.

- Impainmant
The Group completes an annual assessient for any Indication of impairment for 2lf entities based on
spacific asset consideralions, as appliceble, and taking into considemtion expectations on lulure
estimated cash flows. Impalrment tasts hava bean performed by the Group for the carrying vahee of
goodwill and propery plant and equipment as of 31 Decembar 2016 on the cash genaraling units
{*CQUs"} listed balow In Nole &.

- Pladgad properly, plant and squipment

The Group has pladged property, plant and equipment of approgimately USD 407.44 million {2016: USD
420.22 milllan) net, lor securing banking facilities granted to Group entities.

Enplish iranslalion is for infarmmalion pumeses only Fuvmanien lenguans taxt i tho offica! laxt for submiesion.
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6. IMPAIRMENT TEST

Impairment tests have bean performed by the Group for the carrying vaiue of goodwill and propery plant
2nd aquipment as of 31 December 2016 op the cash generating unile (“CGLls") listed bolow, Based on
the impaiment tests parformed, no Impalment has baen identifled.

As of December 31, 2016 the net book value of properly plant and equipmeant {or the cash genarating
units s the follawing: Relining USD 815 million, Pelrochemicals USD 110 midion, Downstream USD 192
million.

Refining

Relining CGU Includes the operations of Petrormidia Relinery and Vega Rafinery, The recaverable
amount of Relining CGU unlt hes baen dalamminad based on the fair valus less costs to sall using
{inanclal budgeats approved by senlor menagement covering a five-year pernd. The discount rats applied
to cash flow profections is 9.6% {2015: 9.8%) and cash flows beyond the S-year pariod are extrapolaled
using & 1.5% growth rate that is the same as the long-term averags growih rate for the Industry, Tha

cepitalfzation rale used for residual values is 8.1% (2015: 8.3%).
Pairachemicals

Petrachemicals CGU Includes the pelrochemical business of the group, which Is included within
Rompetral Rafinare fegal enlity; the unit Is involvad in the production anrd distdbution of ofefing in
Rornania. The racovarable amount of Rompatra! Petrochemicals unit has been determined based on the
falr valua less costs 1o sell using linancial budgets approvad by senfor management cavering & five-year
pariod. The discount rate applled to cash flow projections is 8.6% {2015:6.8%) and cash fiows bsyond the
S-year petlod are extrapalated using a 1.5% growth rate that is the same as tha long-term average growih
rate for the Industry. Tha capitalization rata used for residual values is 8.1% {2015: .38},

Downstraam Romania

Tha Downstraam Romania CGU comprises the ratall and wholesals operations of Rompstrol
Bownstream SHL and the wholesala activity suppotied by the storage depots owned by Rom Ol S.A.

The recoverable amaunt of Downslream Rorania unit has also baen determined based on the fair valye
lass costs to sell ustng financial budgets approved by senior managameant covering a five-year paried and
same assumplions as for Refining unit. The discount rate appiled ta tash flow projeclions s 8.6% {2015
9.8%) and cash flows bayond the 5-yenr period are extrapolated using a 1.5% growlh rals that Is tha
same as tha long-lerm average growth rate for the industry. Tha capitalization mte used for resldual
values ig 8.1 % (2015 B.3%).

Kay assumplions used in fair value l255 cosls o sell calculations

Tha kay assumptions used in the falr value less cosis 1o sell calculations for the above-mentionad CGuUs
are:

s Operating profit;

e Discount rates;

° Growih rate used lo extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget paricd.

Following Opermating profit margin on the basis of Nat revenues wona applled for the retevant Cash
Genaratlng Unlts:

2017 2018 2018 2020 2021
Fompelrol Refinery 2.1% 2.6% 5.5% 4.8% 5.6%
Petrochemicals -0.8% -0.8% 27% 0.3% 3.4%
Downsiream Romania 27% 26% 4.4% 4.0% 4,8%

Engiish translalion is o infommalion purpeses caly. Romanien lnmege toxd ia e ollickl loxt for submission,
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6. IMPAIRMENT TEST {conlinued)

Discount rates reflect tha current markat assessmant of the risks specific 1o each cash genarating unit.
Tha discount rate was estimatad based on the averaga percentage of a welghted average cost of capital
for the industry. This rate was further adiusled to reflact the marke) assessmenl of any risk speciic to the
cash ganarating urit tor which fulure estimates of cash-flaws have not been adjusted.

Growth rale estimates - Retes are based on published industry research.

Sensilivity to changes in assumplions

With regard to the assessment of the fair valua lass costs to sell for cash generating units, managermant
befiaves that it Is vesy unlikely that changes in any of the above key assumptions would cause the
carrying valus of the unlt ta malerially sxceed ifs recoverable amount, other than as disclosed below:
FAompealrol Refingry

The braak-aven paint for the current model is achlsves under a decrease of 48.1% of Cpemting profit,
raaching the loliowing Oparating prafl margina:

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Operating profit margin 1.1% 1.3% 2.8% 2.6% 2.9%

Petrochemicals

The breal-aven point for the current modal! is achieved undar & decrease of §2.5% of Oparating profit,
reaching the {elfowing Operating prafit maming:

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

QOperaling profit margin -0.3% -0.8% 1.0% 01% 1.3%

Downstragm Homania

The break-aven paint for the current madet is achieved under a decrease of Operating profit of 67.2%
reaching the following Oparating profit margins:

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Operating profit margin 0.9% 0.8% 1.5% 1.9% 1.3%

*Opsrating profit marglng ware computed bassd on nat revenua

English transiation Is for Infermalion pposan only. Romantan lzaguane toxt is tha olficlal tant lor submission.
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7. INVESTMENTS

a} Investments in Consolidated Subgidiaries

Details of the Group consolidated subsidiarias at Dacembar 31, 2016 and 2045 are as follows:

Effectiva
Elective ovmerehip Control
ownership  Control Juna  Decomber  Dacamber
Company nama Range of activity June 30, 2017 30, 2017 31, 2618 at 2a1s
Rompeteol Downstreom Ratall Yrads of Fuelz and
SR.L Lubreanls 160.00% 100.00% 108.00% 100.00%
Rom Qi 5.A. Whelasals of Fuals; fuel
storgs 100.06% 160.00% 108005 100.00%
Fompatrol Logistics S.AL.  Logistics operallons B3.19% 100.00% 85,19% 100.00%
Aompelrod Patrochamicols  Palrochamicals
S.H.L. 100,00%: 100.80% 100.00% HL00%
Aompetre Quelity Conlie!  Quality Conlrn! Sarvices
SRL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Hompatral Qas S.A.L. LFG Sates 66.18% 100.60% BG.10% 100.00%

Effectiva awnarship interesis for tha Group takes Inle considaration Indiract shersholding weighted with
corresponding Group ownarship in the intermediate sharehalder and this percentage is used for
consolidafion, while the control parcent takes into conslderation the iotal Inferest controllad directly and
indiractly,

b} Avalinble for sale Investments

Decembear December
June 30, 2017 31, 2016 June 39, 2017 31, 2016
Hsh usD RON HON
Other 18,583 18,583 78,868 78,868
Tolal 18,583 18,583 75,968 78,988

Other Investments ara invesimants in compenias In Romanla, which are hald primarily for long-temm
growlh potentizl,

8. INVENTORIES, NET

ush uson HON RON
Crude off and other fasdstock malerials 89,502,937 110,510,568 357,250,973 441,102,932
Polvoleum and patrachemical products 88,774,804 68,858,959 358,336,520 278,842,005
Worl In progress 27,980,381 28,704,734 111,683,691 114,574,945
Spare pans 16,443,226 18,612,033 35,633,137 88,308,030
Consumables and other raw materials 5,122,396 5,583,758 20,448,044 22,207,570
Merchandises 8,219,330 B,787.215 32,807 456 27,001,169
Ciher Inventories 8,720,686 8,725,268 34,808,618 34,826,007
Invesntaries provision {19,606,816) {16,680,970) {78,260,608) {B5,6232,007

226397004 Za009055F @ 902705892 818410482

Englsh anstation Is far intemation pumoass only, Aomanian langusns text is the olfdlsl tewt Tor subndssion
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B, INVENTORIES, NET (zontinued)

The inveritories provision rmovement in 2017 and 2016 is provided below:

fune 30, 2617 Cacambar 31, june 30, 2017 Dgeambar 31,

016 2015
ush usn HON RON
Resgrve es of January 1 {16,688,970) {19,479,873} (66,522,607} {77,754,912)
Accruad provision (2,747,931} {8,103,255) (10,928,452}  {24,361,142)
Wrile off - 191,172 - 443,743
Reversal of provision 177.915) 8,761,085 (710,147} 35,049,704
Reserve ne of June 30 1
Decemivar 31 ne (19,505,816} {16,680,670)  {78,2060,605)  (6E,622,007)

The inventorios provislons mainly represent the provision for net realizable valua in ralatlon to refinedes
and patrochamical plant.

The Group has pledged invenlories in gross amount of USD 108.45 milion (2016: USD 170.16 milfion) to
secura banking lacifitias.

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As mentienad In Note 1 ths Parent company and its subsidizries ara part of KMG International Group,
The balances with refatad partles are disclosed in Note 24,

Decomboer3l,  June3d,  Docembar
June 30, 2017 2018

2017 3 il

usD usn RON RON
Trads receivables 284,148,351 252,478,726 1,134,182,135 1,007,780,852
Advances to suppliars 5,846,104 9,141,906 23,334,724 35,468,018
Sundry deblors 34,048,047 31,018,813 135,802,780 123,811,892
VAT to bo recovarad 16,588 71,450 66,211 285,193
Qthsr racelvablas 167,486,491 87,603,703 688,582,044 349,670,181
Frovigion for bad and doubiiul dabls (101,520,661} (82,735,110}  {405,219,718) {370,152,182)

ASRA5 070  2BZLS7Z4BR LSAGAIROTS LIAT.ERG544

Movement in the above provision is distlosed below and in Nole 20.

Inctuded In Sundry debtors in 2017 s an amount of USD 23.88 million (2016: USD 20.99 million) for
payment made by Rompatrol Rafinare for antidumping and counlarvalling taxas for Biodiess! import {in
respect with KMGH); and USD 2,97 million (2016 USD 2.75 milllon)} for principel liabllitles and related
panaltles paid 1o ANAF {ollowing General Tax Inspection Heport eovaring 2007-2010 pericd, and an
additional USD 3.4 million (2016: USD 3.2 million) {or payment mads by Rompetrol Rafinare SA lo
Navodari City Halt feitowing the fiszal audit on local taxes {In raspact of revaluation of bulldings) (see Nole
7).

Qut of the total balanca for other recaivables of USD 167.85 million, an amount of USD 28.2 million
{2016: USD 24.74 million) refates to Compelition Council fine from Dlownstream and USD 101.68 million
relates 1o cash pooling receivables for: Rompelrol Downstream (USD B6.9 million) and Rompatrel Gas
{USD 14.67 million). Also, In other recaivablas an amount of USD 11.36 millicn {2016: USD 13.8 milllon)
refers to excise receivables in Rompeirol Rafinare,

Engilsh Irmnstation |s fos infomation pusposes enly, Romanlan tanpimgs laxt |s the oificis) texd for submisslon.
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{(Amaunis in US dollars reprasanting the funclions! and presentation currency of the Group. Amounts in AON are
previded lor infommation pumoses only {sea Note 2a))

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Juna 30, Dzeamber June 30, Pacambar
2017 1, 2016 2017 31,2008
usp usn RON AON
Sundry dablors 34,048,047 31,018,813  135902,780 123,811,552
Other racalvablag 167,496,441 87,603,702 660,562,044 349,670,181

Frrovision for sundry deblors and other recaivables (30,118,548} (26,520,402} {120,2186,168) [105,855,183)

Qut of the tolal amount af other receivables and surdry debtors of USD 201.5 million {2016: USD 1186
miliion) an amount of USD 30.11 milfion (2016: USD 26.52 milllon} Is provisionad,

The movement in provision for doubtiul debts for irade and other recslvables is as iollows:

June 3o zpiy  Dessmberdi, ?.T!‘lﬁr L June 30,2017 Mﬂ“£1 s

usp usn RO RON
Balance at the beginalng of the year {82,735,110) (23,925,432)  (3I70,152,192)  (374,803,362)
Impairment tasses recognizad on recaiveblas (876,957} {1,347 495) (8,702,073) (5,378,528)
Impainment losses reversed 389,450 2,049,147 1,584,405 8,178,170
Translation differancas (8,508,044} 488,670 (33,859,857} 1,850,528
Balanes ot tha and of the yoor (101,520,651} (82,735,410} (405,219,718}  {370,152,16%)

Trade recelvables Iotaflag USD 104.77 million (RON 418.22 million) as at June 30, 2017 and USD 132.18
million (RON 527.6 millian) as at Decamber 31, 2016 are pledged 1o abiain credit facilitias {see Notes 12
and 18).

Engliah translation Is lar Information purposes only. Romanizn Isnguage @ ks tha olfizled taxt lor submission
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NOTES TO THE CORSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

(Ampunis in US doltars represeniing the funclional and prosamialion currancy of the Group. Amaunis In RON are

provided for information purposas only (sea Note 2a))

10.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Juna 30,2017 Becembardt, funo 36, 2017 Decanber 31,

2018 2016

HED 31 HON BON
Cash al bank 5,254,980 14,472 800 20,975,253 57,768,181
Cash on hard 1.212,314 1,196,846 4,838,951 4,176,413
Cash aquivalants 340,091 140,852 1,357,314 562,211
£.807.748 15010.288 20171518 ELI05.805

includad in cash at bank is USD 1.75 millfion (RON 5.89 million} as at June 30, 2017 and USD 1.54 milflon
{RON &.14 millon) as al Decamber 31, 2016 represanling cash coilzteral for ceraln bank facilities (see
Nota 12 and 15). Cash egulvalents represent mainty cheques in lhe course of being cashad.

11.SHARE CAPITAL

As of June 30, 2017 and Decambar 31, 2016 the share capital consisted of 44,108,205,728, authordzed,
isaued and fully peld ordInary shares with a face value of RON 0.1 sach.

Shareholders' slnucture as at Junae 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 s as {ollaws:

Becambar 31, 2016
Amount par
stafuiory
documents Amaount undsr Amoun? undar
Shareholdars Ovmgrship [AON] IFRS {USH) IFRS [AON]

HEAG Intomatlonal NV 48.11% 2,122,250,642 704,057,130 3,429,769,048
Romanian State repressnted by
Minislry of Enargy 44, 70% 1.971,500,505 554,045,871 2,814,555,507
Hompatrol Financka! Group S.A.L. 6.47% 285,408,308 94,684,271 407,454,823
Fompatrol Well Services S.A, 0.05% 2,188,020 729,187 3,137,953
Cthars (nol State or KMG Greup) 0.67% 20,562,086 9,807,428 42,904,208
Total 100% 4,410,920,571 1,463,323,807 Ggg?g 21 28

There were no changes In tha statutory valug of Rompetrol Rafinare SA issuad share capital in 2017 and

2016.

Share pramiurm and effget of translers with equity holders

Share premium and aflect of transfers with equity holdars are the resull of conversion of bonds into
ordinary shares as at Seplernber 30, 2010 in favor of the Romanlan Stale represented by the Ministry of
Finance, followling the Emergency Ordinance ("EGO") 118/2003 ratified by Law B8/2005,

The transactions resulted in an impact on the Etfect of transfar with equlty holders reserve amounting
USD 596.83 mitllon and share premium of USD 74 milion.

English transizlion ks for Information mumoses enly. Romanian ianguege laxd Us ths offizlal fext for submiselon
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA
WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amovmnls in US dellars rapresenting the funclional and presentation cumency of the Group, Amounis in FON ara
providsd for information purposss only (sea Nots 2g))

11. SHARE CAFITAL (continued)
Hybnd Loan

In 2042, USD 800 miltion of the totel cutstanding balance of the loan payable to KMG Internaticnal NV
was canverted into sn unsecurad hybrd loan, repayable after 51 years. During 2013, an additionat USD
200,000,000 wers cunverted (USD 150 milfon related to Rempsirel Ralinare and USD 56,000,000 (o
Fompatrol Dowstraan), the hybrld loan amounting te USD 1,000 million. The loan Is subordinated to any
present and future llabifity of the companias. At maturly the Inan can be repaid In cash ar fully or partially
converted Into shares. The Intesest rata for this Joan Is 15% of the aggregate amouni of the company's
annual ERIT (eperational profit), snd it is computed and becomas payable If the below conditions are mat
cumutatively:

v tha company records nat profit alter tax In the year
¥ the company wil ba able to distribule dividends as per e Romanian law requirements

12 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS FROM BANKS

017 Decembar C

Juna3g, Dacambac
w7 FL3NE

i1}

usp uUsD RON ACN
Unicredit Bank, NG HBank, BCR, Ralfislsen Bank « 127,850,463 - 510,315,123
Rampetre! Downstream: The entire axposura is
composed by 2 different loans Tn USD, The loans are
payabla by April 23, 2018. The loans were
Iranstarred to shost term debl,
Unicredit Bank, ING 8ank, BCR, Raeif{elzen Sank - B5556435 - 261,868,510
Rompatiol Aefinase; The exposure fs composed by 4
leans in USD. The loans are payabls by Apni 23,
2018. Tha toans ware trenstared to shor tarm debt,
Amounl payabla within ene year principal . (244,083) - {874,297)
Taist : 123182805 z £ZL08R3738
Dorember  June3,  Docamber
Jnod0.2017  “5N51s  26i7 . 315018
Usn usn RON HON
COne year or less - principel - 244,093 - H74,297
One year or leas - eccruad intarast long-tarm Joans . - - .
Batwean two and five years z 183362805 1 773008336
Total z AB5.408 835 z ZILLSARER]

The loans are secured with pledges on property plant and equipmant of USD 407.44 miftion (2016: USD
420.20), lavaniories of USD 100.45 milllon {2016: USD 170.16} and trade receivablas of USD: 104.77
million {2016: USD 132.18million).

The club loan with Ralffeisen/BCR/ANG/Unicradit is secured with a USD 200 milion Comorale Guamantes
by NC KazMunayGas JSC with 2 maturity of 5 yaars.

All the financial covenants applcable were complied with as of June 50, 2017

English trenslation b lor infozmation purposes anly. Aomanian [sngusgn text is the offizls! tex for subsmission
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounis In U5 daltars rapresanting b‘w funclionsl and prasaniation curancy of the Groug. Amounts in ADN are
provided for fnformation pumases only {sec Nota 2o}

13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Deferred tax, nat balunces are presented in the stalement of financial position as lollows:

Dalatrad lax assels
Delerrad {ax llabliies
Dalerred tax (agsel} f linbliily, net

{63,162,009)

dune 30, Dacembar
2817 31,2036
uso usp
(63,465,579}  {53,468,575}

2017
HON

mgm__

31,2018
BON

{253,334,834) {253,934,834)

306670 306570 @ 1373674 2 1223674

(63,162,808} {252,111,169)

(252,111,180)

Tha defered fax (assels) Mabilitiss are comprised of the tax efect of tha temporary differences related 10!

usp
207

Yamporary differencas

Inlangibla assetg

Prapedy, plant and eqgulpmant
Invantories

Provisiong

Tax lbases

Olhar

Total temporary differances (sssat)iability
Dafterad lax slfect

Intengible pssely

Propeny, plant and equiprment

Invaniorss

Provislons

Tax lossss

Othar

Deferrad tax {nszat¥iisbliity recognizad

RON

2017

Temporary differances

Intangibls agests

Broparty, planl and agulpment
Inventares

Provislons

Tax loases

Othar

Total temporary diffarences (assetViabillty
Dafigrad tax affect

Intangible kssels

Propasty. plent and equipment

Inventosies

Provisions

Tax togses

Qthar

Dafered t6x (ansetVliability recognized

Opaning
balance

48,238
125,008,263
82,619
(65,505,531)
{454,374,401)
{663}

394

7,878
20,001,002
13,218
{10,484,085)
{72,609,917)
(1086)
{63,162.009)

I

bolancs

195,533
498,682 493
329,774
{2B1,545,157)
(1,813,535,741)
{2,645

(1,575,694,738)

31,445
79,834,000
52,764
(41,847 ,225)
(350,181,721)
(423)

{252, 111.160)

ChargediiCradiled)
I incoma

Charaadi{
Gradited}
o incoms

EhargedlCraditad)
10.zaulty

v

L2]

Eharged!
Credited)

1o anulty

t

Closing
balance

4p,238
125,008,263
82,658
{65,525,531)
(454,374,481}
1663)

94,7 5

7.878
20,001,002
13,219
{10.484,085)
[72,609.817)
{108}
(83,162,005}

Closing
balanea

198,533
498,862,495
328,774
{281,545,157)
{1813,635,741)
(2.84€}

{1,575,584,738)

31,445
79,034,000
52,764
{41,847 225}
(250,181,721
{428)
{252,111 JB0)

English translation Is for informaticn putposes only. Romenrian lznguapge tex ks the olficlal tay ior submission,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounts in US dollars reprasanting the functionat and

providad fer informalion purposea only (sea Nota 2a))

presentation currancy of the Sraup. Amounts in ADN are

13. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

uso
2016

Tempaorary differences

intangibla assals

Froparty, plant and aquipment
Invantaries

Provizions

Taxiosses

Oiher

Totai temparary ditferancas
{assat)iability

Daffored tax effoct
Inlangiblo assals

Propady, plant and equipmant
Invastmants

lnventories

Pravizions

Taxlosses

Cthar

Dalarred tax {assatiiabiity
recoguizad

RON
2018

Temporary differences

imangibla assets

Proporty, plant and squipment
Invantorias

Provizlong

Tax logsgas

Othar

Yolsl tsmporary differsnces
{aasai)lnhiity

Daffarad tax effact
intangibis nasels

Propgerty, plent and equipmant
Inventanios

Provizions

Taxloasea

Cthar

Defarred tnx {aszetifilability
recognized

Openlng  Chargad/{Creditad)
halaney loincome
48,238 .
102,846,658 22,059,594
82,618 .
{85,525,531) -
(410,561,444) {43,813,038)
{863} -
{373,002,112) (21,753,444}
7.878 .
16,471,467 3,520,535
13,219 -
{10,484,085) .
(85,685,831} {7.010,086)
{106} -
{58,881.458) 3,600 551
Dpaning Chor It
balanes o Incoma
196,533 -
410,811,622 8,050,859
329,774 .
{261,545,157) .
{1.838,756,004) {174,879,741)
{2,646) -
1.4 871 (66:628.872)
31,445 -
65,745,851 14,088,189
52,764 -
(41,847,225) -
{262,200,980) (27,980,761}
{423} -
{236,218.538) (13,882,623}

Charged!|Cradiad)
o aauily

[ T T B 1

4

I T

L I R T T

(X}

Claging
balancy

49,288
125,006,263
82,818
{65,525,531)
{454,374,482)
{863)

(394,762,556)

7,878
20,001,002

13,219
(10,484,085
(72,688,917}

(408)

{63,162 0048)

Lloging
balance

136,533
498,962,498
329,774
(261,545,157)
{1,813,625,745)
{2,646)

11.575,694,743)

31,445
78,834,000
52,784
{41,847,235)
(290,181,721)
(#23)

(252111160

The ability of the Group 1o ohtain recovery of its dalerred tax asset depends on the enlities ability, where
tex fosses have arisen to generale laxable income sulficient o covar tha applicabls tax lnsses available,
The Group did not recognize defered tax Income for all availabls tax fossas {zee note 22}, Mansgemenl
consliders that fulure laxable income will be generated for recovery of the avaliable lax losses whare it

has recognized a corresponding defarred tax asset.

See also note 22 for datails for the Income fax rate and other relaled matiars,

Daferred tax assets and fabilities cannot be offset between tha ¢

law does not define the concept of “Flscal Group®,

ampanias from Romania, Tha local fizeal

English tmnglelon s for Informalion pumpeses only. Homardian langumpn tavt Is the oificla! boxd for submisslon
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ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounis in U5 dollars reprasanting the functionat and presentation currency of the Group, Amounts in RCON ara

grovidad for nformation purposes anly (sea Nola 2a))

14.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
June 30, 2017

usD
Trade payables 654,717,772
Advancas [1oim cuslomens 27,474,858
Special found tex for oll produsts 5,904,934
VAT paynhla 3p,699,848
Prolit tax payable 874,035
Cither laxes payabla 436,218
Employees and soclal obfpalions 2,573,047
Dalermed ravenuss 4,857,306
Other Habilitias 151,026,161
Totsl BINA55.508

B grglgrm Jung 3o, o1y Eesemberdtl M" 1
usn AON AON
628,497,601  2,613,305092  2,50B,848,530
21,064,941 108,665,005 84,080,712
5,404,729 27,561,124 25 564,476
27,350 857 122,534,452 109,087,124
185,338 2,800,411 739,768
{620,103) 1,741,164 (2,475,141}
2,881,425 11,866,217 11,641,123
5,831,965 19,427 852 23,158,543
97,015,834 &02,a820,922 ABT,RARHA
ZRBSTIAYE  BAILBdA28Y 3J4TARARMAR

The Group emered into a cash pooling contract for optimizing cash, with KMG Rompetrol S.R.L. ("Master
Company’}. The amounts in balance as of June 30, 2017 are Included in other llabilities, for the following
companles: Rompetrol Rafinere S.A. USD 137 miflion and Rormoil USD 1.3 milon and Rompatrol Quality
Controt 5.R.L USD 0.8 millicn, Rempetrol Downstream 3.R.L, and Mompatrol Gas have a positive balance
includad in olher recelvables (gee note 8) amounling lo USD 85,89 milion and USD 14.67 miliion

raspastively,

Also In othar llabilities are Includad short lerm guaranteass in Rompelrel Downstream S.R.L., in amount of

USD 3.65 million {2018: USD 3.45 milfion).

i5. SHORT-TERM DEBT

Bancpost

Bampalrol Aelinars §.A. Ravolving credit celling on shont
tarm credit fechiily of up o EUR 30 millien, for issus of lallers
of crait and lalfers of guaraniea. Maturily date is July 31,
2018. Drawings In USO/EUR/RON.

Urileradit Benlk, 1N Benlt, BCR, Roiffalsen Bank

Fompatre) Downstream: The enlire exposure ks composed
by 2 diflarent foans In USD. The loans are payabls hy April
23, 2018.

Unlceedi Bank, ING Benk, BCR, Ralffoiesn Bank

Rampatrot Ratinars: Tha axposum Is composed by 4 lpang
in UST. Tha loans are payabla by Apri! 23, 2016,

Accsuet ntorest

Current partion of leng-lemm dabt

Juns 30, December  June30,  Decamber
2017 31,2016 2017 31,9016
usn uso RON RON

51,532,114 20,644,188 205,680,434 62,401,184

103,962,315 - 414,965,580 .

51,229,100 - 424,225,953

193,804 773,928
244,093 974,207
216,017,423 20BEB356 945,655,805 69,375,401

Engish trenstallon i for lotmatien purposes only. Romanlan lenguage text 5 tho ofidel (6 for submission
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RCMPETROL RAFINARE S84

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

{Amounis In US dollars reprasenting tha funclional and presentalion currancy of the Groug. Amounts in HON ora
provided for infarmation purpesas only {sea Note 2a))

15.5HORT-TERM DEBT {continued)
All the financial cavenants apgplicable were complied with as of June 30, 2017.

All loans are interest bearing and the effective welghted average Inleras! rates per currency ara the
lollowing: EUR 3.3% {2016: 2.08%), RON 4.32% (2016; 4.20%) and USD 2.14% (2018; 3.179%).

The loans bearing guaranteas are secured with pledgas on property plant and eguipment of USD 407.44
miliion (2016: USD 420.28), inventories of USH 109,45 milllon {2016: USD 170.16) and trade recelvables
of USD: 104.77 million {2016: USD 132,16 million}.

16. PROVISIONS

Provisions comprise the {cliowing;

30 June 2017 31 Decembar 2095 30Juns 2017 31 Decembar 2035

usb usn RON AON
Non-current provisions 74,881,185 78,429,343 299,287,439 305,067,723
Total Provisians 74861105 76429343 280267430 306.067.223

Tha movement in provislans is presented balow:

Ractagallication
Hista) At Janupry 2037 pstwesn balapce AL mna 2
chaet Hams
Provislon for refirement benafi 6,958,404 - 6,858,404
Provision for restucludng 13,486 - 13,486
Envircnmenlal provisions 85,585,731 - 65,595,731
Uiher provisions 3,861,722 {1.448,148) 2.413,574
Talet 2429343 {1.445128) 24.981 165
Reclagsiieat
RON A1 Jdanpary 2017 batwoon balanes t 30 Juns 2047
ghast Hams
Proviston for metirement benefit 27,774 470 - 27,774,470
Proviston for restructusing 53,823 - 83,829
Environmental provisions 261,825,361 - 261,825,361
Cihar provisions 15,414,083 {5.760,284} 2,633,779
Tolul MAASLTAR 15,200,284} 289287938

Tha movement in olher pravislans from 2017 s related mainly 1o tha proviston booked in ralalion to
Compelition Council case in Rompetre! Downstream (USD .45 miltion).

English trarzlation is lorinformatlon puposes enly. Aomanlan languans tox ts tha sificlel tex for submission
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16.PAOVISIONS (continued)

Reclgasl

tlon

Atl talny A
UsD Jangary i 2 dungug |, 2EWESD

R01G yaar flamg an1g
Provision for retlremant benafit 8,550,538 1,028,432 {621,564) - ,558,404
Provislon for restrusturing 13,486 - . - 13,485
Envircnmantal provisions 65,585,731 - - - 85,585,731
Othar pravigions 6,876,964 - - (3,015,242) 3,861,722
Total RMRIIT 028432 (ARLSAA) {15292} 75,209.044

B g Atlsing oot mat
AON sepuary onuly balance sheat

2B1g yeoar ltams duig
Provialen for reliremant banafit 25,146,464 4,108,878  {2,480,572) - 27,774,470
Erovislen for rastruciudng 53,828 - - - £3,82¢8
Environmanis] provisions 281,825,381 i - - 261,835,361
Othar provigions 27,448,402 - - (12,035,339 15,414,083
Total S475.086 41000970 (2460979) {12.035.339) 205067723

The movement in othar pravisions from 2016 Is ralgied mainly to the provision bookad in ralalion to
Competition Councll case In Rompeto! Downstream {USD 3 million}, for mole deialls, see nole 20.

An environmenta provislon has been recagnized in prior periods for Rompetra! Rafinare S.A {Vega
rafinery) for tha eleaning of the oil shidge pools and rastoration of contaminated land. During 2012 an
svaluation rapont was lssued by the third party expert estimaling the costs associated to the technical
methods 1o renlize the remadialien action. Based on these praliminary cost estimatss and the estimatas
complation over a 8 year perod, a discounted cash flow cost eslimata of USD 87.35 million has basn
provided by lhe Group. The Company has re-nesessed the provision as of 31 December 2016 and tha
rasulting diffarence was Immatarial. Gurrenily, the suppliers prequalification slage is in progress and
considering tha further bidding procass and finat contract negotiation, the expacled stant of the works on
the field will be In tha Jast quarter of 2017 / latest (irat quarter 2018. Aller the remediation works will ba
contracled, a batler estimation of the costs will be avallable and this wifl bs rellectad in 2017 financial

staternenmts.

Under the colleclive labor agraemants that cerain Group's entifles hava in forca it is provided that,

employses ara enfitled to speciiic retirement benelits that are payabla an refirement,

if the amployaes are

amployed vith Group entities a! the date of thelr raliremant. A cormssponding provision has baen
recognized basad en; (he specilic banallis provided in the agresment; the number of employaes working
within the ralevant Group antilles; and actuarlal assumplions ragarding moriality, staff tumover alc. Thesa
liabllitias are recorded at their fair values as of the balance sheet date. The refated sarvice cost and
interast expensa ame charged to pedod profit and loss, while all the actuadat galns and losses ara fully
recagnized In ather comprahensive incoma in the pariod in which they occur,

English translation is for iInformation purpesas enly. Romenian fenguage 1o Is 1ha oficls) ter for submizslon,
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17.AEVENUES

June 30, 2017

Usp
Gross tevenues [rom patrolaum products produclion  1,451,182,561
(Grogs zsvanues rom potrolaum products trading 150,062,701
Ravanues froin patrochamicals production 79,882,304
Ravanues from palrochemicals trading 101,850
Ftovenuas lrom other manchandlse sales 30,083,801
RAovenuss from utllites sold 840,839
Ravenuas from kanspanalion fses 696,840
Ravenuas lrom ranls and other savicas 4,047,448
Girose Hevanuas 1, 718,414,575
Lesa galos tnxes {395,389,415)
Less commerciel discounts {48,601,712)
Tota) 274,423,844

June 30, 2016
uso
1.542,073.977

36,622,178
80,459,745
600,686
26,298,512
560,675
634,500
4,957,431
1,702,624,584
{5060,457,415)
(49,023,460)

Li53184.08

Total Revenuss decreased mainly due to the decrease of prises lor eruda ail and palroteum products.

18,COST OF SALES

Juna 2017
4sh

Cruda of and oihart raw malerizls 89,264,203
Cansumables and othoer malerals 5,061,473
Uiliiias 31,243,278
Stalf costs 11,182,440
Tranapodation 5,438
Mainlahance 10,012,891
insuranca GB2,192
Environmaeniat expanses 84,051
Cther 4,356,200
Cash produetion cont 1,062,923,403
Oapracialion and smarizalion 28,708,150
Production costs 1,091,632,553
Plus: Change in Inventories (68,552,807)
Less: Own production of proparty, plant & equipment {1,763,067)
Cost of pelrafeum praducta trading 128,328,167
Cast of patruchamicals treding 120,916
Cost of murchandise sold 24 600,415
Caost ol ulilitias easoid 535,356
Realised {gains)lpsses on darvativas 1,020,476
Unreallsed losses on dervativas -
Yotat 1176922.000

June 30, 3016
usD
875,725,338
6,440,274
35,062,924
12,058,859
69,580
11,714,482
B52 757
128.076
6,089,874
248,150,984
35,332,145
883,483,108
884,120
{150,473

26,445,128
640,094
22,878,220
509,420
{1,484,534)
201,000

Juns 36, 9017 June 30 2016
RON RON
5,792,395,192  6,155,1B8.279
590,975,271 146,177 427
318,850,216 36,070,072
406,804 2,433,482
122,538,615 104,862,528
3,755,359 3,834,534
2,781,838 2,533,840
19,348,593 18,827,561
6,859,051,776  6,725,027,663
{1,578,186,866} {1,997,575,776)
{193,993,733) (195,677,141}
LARBABL1YY  Ap0R2774.748
June 30, 26017 Jung 30, 2016
RON RON
3,988563,427 3,495457,686
24,184,369 25,706,354
124,767,536 139,853,681
44,554,879 48,135,827
395,102 277,728
33,986,854 48,758,355
2,643,138 3.403,780
335,849 503,232
17,367,808 24,346,849
4,242662,763 3,784,544,573
114,592,872 141,028,257
4,357,251,335 3,925,572,830
{277,020,420} 3,568,88D
{7,037,282} {800,618}
516,213,370 165,555,728
482,638 2,554,935
98,192,556 61,322,407
2,140,865 2,033,388
4,073,230 {6,965,433)
- 802,292

4082680281 4J24.0848443

English trunsfation Is far Infommation purposoy erdy. Forsmeden 1angeacs taxt s he officlal terd for submisslon
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19.5ELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, INCLUDING LOGISTIC COSTS

Junea 30, 2617 dune 39 2016

usp uso
Stalt cosls 9,758,428 10,222,512
Utifitias 2,186,185 1,881,016
Tranaporalion 21,598,831 20,417,545
Prolesgional and censulting lzes 12,881,395 12,504,051
Royattiea snd rents 2,780,509 2877748
Censumebles 108,807 253,425
Mariating 1,688,302 1,536,703
Taxas 1,142,498 1,882,223
Communications 380,460 416,486
insuranca 513,602 478,357
IT ralated oxpendiiures 4,053,591 3,804,707
Environmantal expanses 1,183,661 985,876
Mainlenance 4,715,453 4,263,845
Cthor expansas 8,771,760 3,789,270
Costs belore depreciation 6,744,639 656,600,785
Depracision and amertisation 18,420,807 12,988,514
Totzi BE.186.446 I8.607.280
20,0THER OPERATING INCOME/ {(EXPENSES), NET
Juns 90, Juns 30,
2047 ape
usD Hsp

Nat book value of non-current assels
disposals {27,824) 1,017
Procseds on dlspesals of non-currant assefs 248,958 121,805
Provislen for reselvables, nat (277,.507) {84,284)
Provision far inventosies, net {2,915,845) 572,448
Tangible and intangible assels wile-off . {28,581}
invaniorss wille-off {1,700) {4,352}
Othar, nat 75517 237,132
Total {2.808,40%) 12172335

Tha mavement fn provisions |s presented in Motes §, 8 and 9.

Juns 30, 2017  June 30, 2918
RON RON
38,954,761 40,803,157
8,726,038 7,827,395
85,211,734 61,488,631
51,415,088 49,209,959
11,088,721 11,488,535
434,303 1,011,545
6,650,027 8,133,750
4,580,273 7512045
1,518,606 1,662,444
2,080,282 1,808,382
15,180,108 15,585,628
4,724,583 3,935,124
18,621,723 17,019,137
27,029,480 15,164,786
376,385,727 261,857,507
73,526,651 51,853,569
ABLAZATE 313740078
duns 30, duna 30,
2017 2016
ROMN RON
{111,059} 4,059
85,733 466,043
{1,107,689) {336,420}
{11,835,599) 2,284,026
- {105,098}
{8,788) {17,831
301,425 2,842.203
13,575.954) 5238142

English translation s k¢ Information puipezes only, Romanian langiman tadd Is the offielal text for submission,
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21.FINANCIAL COST, FINANCE |INCOME AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

dung 35,
2017
usn
Finanea ceat
Lata paymani Intorast {64,289}
Intarest expanse (14,888,774}
Interest expensa sharehoidars 14,808,537}
Commiaslon ard] other back charges (9,047,243)
Colleclion distounis expanses 1034
{28,805,809)
Finance incoma
Intarest Incoma 14977018
Otlhar financizl incoma 159,562
15,135,561
Finance Incomel/{cost) net (13,668,228}
Unmalt;;c; igzl forelpn sxchanga @414.272)
Realized net loreign exchanpe (losses)/gains 3,033,747
Forelgn axchangs galn/(loss}, net {380,825}
Tolsl A48

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2016 2017 2018
Us0 RON RON

{8,958) (258,610} (35,748)

(8.752,744)  (59428,541} (34,938,678}

{4.862,794) (19,185,202} (18,212,382}

{7.448,813)  (36,112,070) (29,731,130}

{1,154) 4,127 {4,607}
{20,774,261) {114,978,386)  (82,920,484)
4,462,663 58,780,771 17,812,720
171,601 635,892 684,945
4,634,264 &0,417,663 18,487 665
(16,039,997)  {54,580,723) (64,422,799}
880,868  {13,628,087} 3,435,320

{4,669,.428) 12,109,201 (19,638,022)

(3,803,765 {1,518806)  {15.202.703)

138ABI0R}  (S6.075.588)  (ZD.6RA.501)

Collection discounts expenses represent financial discounts granted by Rompelrol Downstream S.R.L to
its customars for the early payment of recelvables. From 2017, the amounts were daducted from nat

evenues.

22.INCOME TAX

a) The current incoms tax rate in 2017 was 16%, the same a5 In 2016,

dura 30, 2017 June 30,2016  Jens 30,2017 Jeps 30 3816
LIS usb AON HOHN

Tax sxpenge compises:
Curran! tax exponse 415,070 471,982 1,656,752 1,883,916
Dalemad tax cradil rafating to the
argination end savarsal of \ermporary - - - .
diffarences
Tots! tax axpensefincome) 415,070 471,982 1,656,752 1.883.516

The Raomanlan Govarnment has a number of agencles that are authwrized to conduc! audls (conirols) of
Romanlan companles as well as foreign companies doing business in Fomania. Thege controls are
simiar in naturs to tax audits pedonmad by tax avthorlies in many countries, but may extend not only o
{ax matters but to other legal and rapulatory matiers in which the appllcabla agenay may b Interasled.
Managament believes that it has adequately provided for tax hiabilities in the accompanying financlal

statements,

b} The deferrad tax Habililas details are disclosed in Nots 13,

Engiiah transtation is {or information puiposss only. Fomanlen lenguags taxd Is tha offfdal tax for submésston.
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23.0PERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
a} Business Segments

For managament purposss, the Group is currenily organized in 3 segments — refining, pelroshemicals
and markeling, Refining comprises Petromidia and Vega refinerdes, Petrochemicats tamprises
pelrochemical diviston of Fompatrot Raflnare SA and Hompetrol Petrachemicals oparations and
Marketing comprises the operations of Rompetral Downstream, Rom OIl, Rompatrol Logistics, and
Rompetrol Gas.

For the income statement, managemenl analysls is made saparately for the 3 sagments: Refining,
Patrochemlcals and Marketing. Tha balance sheet Is analyzed by management at cumulated lavel for
Refining and Petrochamicals segmanis, As & result, the balance sheet Information far segments Refining
erd Petrochemicals are prasanted togather.

English transtation s lor Inforrugion pumposas enly, Romanian kanguags laxt ks tha oilicial toxt for submission
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23. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuad)

2017 Income Statement information

uso

Not ravanues

Cost of sales

Grong margin

Satiing, genaral and
adminisirative axpanses
Othar eparating expenses,
nat

Qpsrating margin
Financia) expenses, nat
Net foreign exchanga
rasult

Profit before Intome tax
incoma lax

Net Profit

Qepraclation and
amortisation

BeN

Nel ravenues

Cosi of sales

Groes mergin

Salling, ganaral and
administrative expenses
Giner oparaling axpenses,
nzat

Qparating margin
Financla! axpenseas, ngd

Nst {oraign axchangs
resuli

Profit before income tax
Intoma lax
Hat Profit

Depraclation and
amortizaticn

EC!iﬂ!l‘lg

1,046,925,644

(1.098.539.465)
38,385,178

(27,648,086)

2384504
8,393,600
{11,323,511)
(14,280,344}
{17.210,246)

{17,210,246)
23 566,777

Relining

4.178,803,708

£2.025.595.875)
164,219,433

{110,357,255)

19.359,083)
33,503,080
{45,197,784)

66,092,893}
{68,694,6497)

(65,584,697)
94,066,780

Petrochemlcnla

749,984,194

(66,370,140}
(6,385,945)
{445,546}

(2,032)
{10,533,524)
{4a7)
5,331,125
(5,502,836}

{5,502,836)
15,497,551

Batrochamicsls

319,255,810

(344,745 414}
(25,489,504)

{17,744,357}

2134
{23,242,012)
(5,744}
81,273,185
(21,384,571}

(21,884,571}
50,661,025

Markaling ad] Songolidated
Marksiin Mnlmnnm Hdatad

609,945,804

(552,768,422
$7,178,482

{47,084,494)

(246,050
$,838,937
{2.344,310)
8,568,694
16,063,321

{415.070)
15,648,251

9,098,614

Murkating

2,434,599,076
12.208.367.173)
228,231,503

{187,877,877)

1882,109)
39,272,117
{8,357,313)
24,201,942
64,116,745
[1.656,752)
62,459,934
36,317,915

{452,432,298)
AZLIS3 1B
8,328,820
(8,977,339)

{387,816}
35,865
{970

34,695

34,585
(733,184)

Congolidation
adjustinanta

(1,845,798,517)
1883002571
37,204,054

(35,833,045)

{1.228,845)
142,350
{3,672)

-

130,487

3,487
(2.926,503)

1,274,423,444

{3.475,922.809)
48,500,535

(88, 185,445)
{2.800.402)
7,434,587
{13,669,228)
{380,505)
(6,615,0686)

{415.070)
{7,0830,135)

47,128,958

Consolidalad

5,086,861,177

14,693.895,201}
353,164,886

{351,892,378)

{11.575,.954}
20,675,654
{54,560,723)
{1.518.868)
(26,404,035)

{1,656,752}
{28,080,787)

188,119,227

English trenslation s fer Inloanation purposes enly. Romardan tanguaga text Is tha official tesl for submission
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23, OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead)

2a17 Statement of financial position information

Roflning & Conaoligstion
ush Pelrochemicaly  Jd2rkating adjusiments  consalidated
Total non-cument assats 1.848831,622 224,537,113 (595,279,476) 1,274,890,058
Tolal curmeni assals 3B5,367417 355,741,128 {117,706,615) 629,401,936
TOTAL ASSETS &031L.HRRA30  EARAYRO4Y  [13.0985.001) 1898291080
Total equity B6D,734,637 202,908,706  (60D,334,732) 472,302,011
Tolal non-current Babtiities 67,470,228 2,934,010 5,013,700 75,477,938
Tolal curent labilties 1,084,794,174 374,376,925  (11B,665,050) 1,350,508,040
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 2031869000  SAOA78.04) {ZJ3M460%1) 1098251880
Capital axpendilure 27,488,711 1,306,869 {70,649) 28,724,891
Refiging & Lonsolldation
RON Polrochiemicats  Marketlng edjustmonts  Sonigolldated
Tolal non-cutrent asseis B,572,530,121 895,243,079 {2,38D,049,528) 5,088,723,672
Total currant assals 1630194045 1419940712  (469.825851) 2,.488,308,605
TOTAL ASSETS DAIOTR6ABE 2AIRIBIIRL (RMQEIEAT) LSTZAIALTA
Total equity 3471545805 809,907,705 (2,900,236,082) 1,885217,423
Total nen-currant ablliies 268,307,416 11,850,580 20,012,183 301,270,189
Tolal cumant fabiftles 4,.300.870.045 14943954 {473.691,580} 5,380,544.861
TOYAL LIARHITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EGUITY RLINJ2416R Z015403.701 (ARADBTSAVS) Z.5T7.032.47H
Capital expenditurs 109,721,510 5,218,487 (281,898) 114,655,801
2016 Income Statement Information
£
Hsn Rofinlan Potrochemicsts  Marksting QB%!}EM_Q_ Emnln Congolidatad
Net ravanues 937,138,292 91,069,411 484,593,160  {359,657,445)  1,153,144,118
Cosl ol sales $691.452.6971 (57,882,306 (421.992.303) 387850213 1.033.407.093)
Gross margin 45,686,295 3,187,105 62,670,857 B,192,768 118,797,026
Salling, gensral and
administralive exponsas (21,282,051} {3.543957) (44.832,487) (6,553,804} {78,602,209)
Othar opemiing expances, not 4,293,934 6,097 (109,145) {2,873,551) 1,317,335
Operating mergin 28,718,178 {750,755} 17,728,225 {3,244,587) 42,452,061
Financial expenses, nat {13,072 424) 215,275 {2.540,768) {742,082) (18,132,999
Nat torelgn excharge result {8,153,252) 1,527 968 818,515 - {3,608,768)
Profit before Income tax 8,492,502 452,483 16,004,974 {3,586,688) 22.503,295
Incoma tax : - 471,802y z (471,582
ot Profit 9,492,502 592,408 15,532,932 (3,286,668) 22,031,313
Deprecialion gnd amortisation 32,849,883 7,604,043 8,714,574 {1,037,821} 48,330,658

in totaf net revenuss are Included customers (hal own mora than 10% of total sales, thelr value
amounting USD 327.6 million in 2017 and LISD 3B8.8 million In 2016,

Enghish translalion Is for information purmoses ondy. Romsndan languagae tax Is tha oificlel o lor submission,
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23.0PERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION {continyed)

RON Rofining  Polroshemicels  Marksting %QMN&&W‘ Gonszolldatad
Nat revenues 3,740,690,267 3B3L03,554  1,934,253,508 (1,435572,693)  4,602,774,745
Cosl of salas (2.550.232.440)  (350.700.224) (16841036721 1468274323 {4124:545,413)
Grass margin 182,356,947 12,721,330 250,150,726 42,761,430 477,930,333
e s (BABEZATT)  (I574230% (1700188720 (38182428  (31,741,075)
pot " OO EIPANSES, 47 130 239 20336 (35652 (114697 s2sa1e
Oparating eargln 14,628,608 {2,605,536) 0765202 (12,950,773) 168,447,350
financial expanses, net (52,178,580 BEO.270  (10,141,467) (2962022)  (64,422,799)
N exehange (4560706 GomSsEt  gasaz : t520700
Profit before Income tax 37,805,328 3,551,515 63,803,855 (15,812,785} 80,521,898
lncoma tax : = {1.883916} l $1.883.916)
Nat Profit 37,885,322 3,961,516 81,908,838 (15,912,755 £7,937,982
Depraciation and
ameriisation 131,120,228 31,149,838 34,784,222 {4,142,483) 192,511,825
2016 Statement of financis) position information

Bofinlng & Congolidation
usp Patrarhomicels tin rdjustnants Songoliduled
Total non-current assals 1,657,832,014 232,348,038  (596,827,621) 1,293,252.431
Tots) current assats 306,514,511 250,542,299  {23571,919)  533.484,601
TOTAL ASSETS g2 4820807  (B20.4Ba840) 1825737990
Total equity BOZ,127,184 196,779,797 (800,282,608} 476,624,262
Total non-cumsnt Yabifiies 132,946,441 132,115,887 5043700 270,075,820
Total curant Gabiliias 030,272,720 163,994,853 (25,230,541} 1,078.037,032
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 164348025 402450337  [520490580) 1495737129
Capitat sxpenditure 37,037,191 24,500,868 (155,108) 61,442,674
Impairment losses - (351,877} - {351,877}

Pafining & Cenaglldgtion
RON Pelroghomicals  MERNR  Togysimeny  Sonsolidated
Total non-currant assets 6,517,236,484 937,417,105 (2,382,638,599) 5,162,017.080
Total cument asgatls 1.223.451.872 1000039588 (84087313} 2,129,404,148
TOTAL ASSETS 7.840,695,355
Total eguity 3560825575 745,531,560 (2,306,026,303) 1,910,420742
Total nan-curvent iablities 530,655,719 527,335,765 200012,184 1,078.007.668
Total current kabililes 3742107062  §54.5054568  (100,707.702) 4.302.984.51
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY LBANBRA3SE )LOATA55781 [67672391%) 7,.081.421,295
Capital expentilure 147,833,632 98,033,802 (618,102} 245,248,452
Impalment losges - (1,404,517} - (1,404,517)

Inter - sagment ravenues are eliminated on consolidation.

= Transfer pricing belween oparating segments (s datarmined based on market rutes apraed batwaen
the segmants. These transler prizes take Into account the lalest Crude/Asfined praducts prices on
markets adjusted by various margins / discounts taking into account quaniity, quality, payment

lerms, lransportation casls ete.

English lrenstatlon i for Information purposes anly, Romantan {anguags taxt [s the offical text for submission
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23.0PERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

b} Geographicat segmants

Al the Group's production facilities ara located In Romania. The foliowing tabla provides an analysis of

tha Broup's nat revenues by geoyraphlcal market:

June 30,2017  June30.2035 June30.2017  June 30,2016

usn uso RON RON

Romanin 801,258,223 BA3.2724681  3,198,222,187  2,567,622.028
Export 473,165,221 508,871,657 1,988,636,980  2,085,152,718
ot of which

Paircleum products 433,606,895 456,136,680 1,728,347,022 1,820,669,597
Petrochemical products 40,158,328 53,734,987 180,291,858 214,483,121
Total 1274423084 1363350018 SOEGESLITY  ABAR7IA7A6

24. RELATED PARTIES

The ulimale parent of the Group (s the “Nallonal Wellare Fund Samuk Kazyna® JSC, an entity with its
headquaness in Kazakhstan, fully ownad by Stata of Kazskhstan. The retaled parties and the nature of

ralationship Is presented below:

Name of ralaled party

KMG Intemnatlonal N.Y.

Byron Shipping Lid.

Byron Shipping SRL

Glohal Securify Systams S.A,
KazMunayGes Enginzaring BV,
KazMuneyGas Trading AG

KME Rompatrol S.8.L

KMG Fompatrol Sewvlces Canter (formar Rompainal
Exploration and Preductien S.ALL)
Midia Marine Terminal 5./.L.
Palplast 8.A.

KazMunayias -Enginaering LLF (lormer Rominaary
Kazahstan LTD)

Rominsarv S.A,

Romingary Valves (aio SAL
Romtnegvices Them S.A.L.
Rompairol Albanla Wholesele Sh.A,
Aompairel Bulgara JSC

Rompatml Enargy S.A.

Rompelr! Financlal Group S.AL
Rompelre! Georgla LLC

Rompetrol Moldova SA

Oilfield Exploration Business Sclutions S A, (former
Rompetral S.4.)

Rempatrol Ukraing LLC

HAompatrol Well Sonces S.A.

THG Palrol Ticaret Anonim Sirkali
Dyneff SA

Uzlna Termestactrica Midia S.A.
Hazmatransfiot

Tenglizchavrod LLP

Nalurs of reiationshlp
Majordty Sharsholdar
Company ownad by KMG Inlemational Group
Company awnad by KMG Inlamationat Group
Company ownad by KMG Intemational Group
Company owned by KME Infomational Group
Company ownad by KMG Intarnational Group
Company ownad by KMQ Intemations! Group

Company owred by KMS Intemational Group

Campany ownad by KMG inlemaliona$ Group
Company awnad by KMG Intemational Group

Company owned by KMG Inemational Group

Campany owned by KMG Inlemational Group
Company vwrad by KMG Intemational Group
Company awned by KMG Intamational Group
Caompany owned by KMG otermational Group
Company ovmed by IME Intemalional Group
Company owned by MG Intemational Group
Campany owned by KMG intermatlonal Group
Company vwnad by KMG Intamational Group
Company ownad by KMQ Intemational Group

Company evmad by KMG Intemaliona) Group

Company ownad by KNG Intemalional Group
Company ownad by KMG Inlemational Group
Company cwnad by KMG Inlemational Graup
Associale of KMG Intemational Group
Associata of KMG Intemational Group
Company affllaled to KMG (rmemationat Group
Campany affiiatad (o KMG Inlemational Graup

English lanstaticn Is oy Informalion pumposes onty. Romeanten fenguage 1axt 43 the offical taxt for sulmizgion.
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The sales to and purchasas from relatsd
undsrteken on a basis that considars

of goods and services provided or raceived. Balances at the yaar-

related parties Joans), interest free {except for sharsholdars loans

Group has not recorded any impaiment of racaivablas relating to

nil}. This assessmant is undertaken each finencial yaar through e

ralated parly and the markat in which the related parly apsrates.

Nome of relaled party

KozMunayGes Trading AG
Fominsary S.A.

KM@ Intamational N.V,
KMG Rompatrol 5.A.L

Ciliiald Exploration Buskness Solulions
54

Rompsirol Weli Services S.A.
KMG Rompatro| Sarvices Cenlar
Paliplast S.A

Rompetrol Bulgnda JSC
RAompatol Moldova SA
KarMunayGas Englneerng B.V.
Rompalod Enargy S.A.

Byron Shipping S8L.

Rompatrot Abanla Wholssala Sh A,

Mictia Marina Terminal S.R.L.
Rominserv Valves jalfe SRL
Fominserv Kazakhstan LTD
Rompeirel Ukeaina LLG

Uzina Termeelastica Midla S.A,
TRG Pelrol Ticarel Ananim Sirketi
Globa) Security Systems S.A.
Tenglzchavroll LLP

Total

parlles are made i the ordinary course of businass and are
pravailing market lerms and conditians as applicable {o the nalure

end are unsecurad {except Jor some

} and setllement occcurs in cash. The

amounts owed by rolated partlas (2016:

Racelvab)
30lunet7 31:Dec-18
usp usn
4,758,347 4,828,871
4.013,M3 4,935,208
1,013,110 818,260
113,271,010 34,126,173
4,879,400 6,551,511
203,184 464,789
13,408 78,554
1,338,024 1,241,823
1,694,352 2,232,376
5,680,447 11,175
3,573 3,573
6801 558
1,959 1,582
12,468 11.532
208,858 327,358
14,238 6,600
168,167 168,167
8,118 7,802
1,114,685 1,933,289
335,348 -
233,421 153,980
372,800 13,347

13951238 EG.A0L7aX

1]

ther

Qwﬂﬂg:! 7
HON
14,984,959
16,021,534
4,043,829
452,121,236

18,476,125

1,170,164
53,506
5,344,714
8,763,046
22,673,504
14,262
2,399
7819
49,758
1,182,093
56,831
671,239
32,403
4,449,265
1,338,548
831,700

xamining the financial position of the

31-Dec-16
RON
18,478,139
19,659,245
2,471,775
136,214,620

22,158,856

1,855,245
313,548
4,957,138
8,678,614
44,605
14,262
2,227
6,215
46,030
1,308,541
26,344
571,239
31,142
1,716,723

814,651
63,275

225,580,634

Englizh transiation a for Information purposes enly. Romeniarn tanguaga taxt i the ofiletal text for submission
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24.RELATED PARTIES (cantinuad)

Nama of related party

KazMunayGas Trading AG
Rominserv S.A.

KMG Inlarnatianal M.V,

KMG Rompaltrel S.R.L

Olifield Exploration Business Sokstions
S.A

gc:quelml Explomtion and Production
FAompetrol Well Saivices 5.4,

KMG Fompatrol Senvices Ceanler
Rompetrof Bulgaria JSC

HRompetrof Moldova SA

Hompstml Financlat Growp S.R.L.
Byron Shipping Ltd.

Byten Shipping SAL

Midta Manna Terminal S.8.L.
flominsare Valves lalfa SAL

Uzine Termoalectdca Midla S.A.
Glebal Sacurily Systams S.A,

Tolal

30-tune17
usn
451,867,430
32,560,457
188,123,888
158,222,387

215,465

17

B,68H,249
1,128,892
108,438
7,520,033
3127787
2211

40,577,720
52,033
2,887,270
448,219

223,860,655

Pavablgs, toans snd ather lishiil
31-Dac-15 30-dune-17
usn AON
440,019,411 1,603,628,847
28,249,425 128,965,054
225,778,122 750,886,423
93,544,858 631,584,658
193,604 850,029
15 68
8,021,032 34,679,146
1,080,058 4,505,872
603 #33,070
818,838 30,016,212
28,607,725 124,843,810
2,045 8,825
1,108 -
35,442 825 161,965,859
27,443 267,880
2,056,375 11,564,453
514,462 1,753,058
B85,197.838 2 £87,825.925

31-Dac16
RON
1,756,337,478
112,757,580
801,193,374
373,334,301

773,130

60

32,015,548
4,311,052
2,407
3,267,594
114,187,734
8,183

4,423
141,470,038
109,539
11,560,881
2053475

2:453.437.277

During 2017 and 2016, Rompatro! Aafinare Group entered into the folfowing transaclions with relatad

parties:

Name of related party

KazbunayGas Trading AG
Aominsery S.A,

K&4G Rompatrot SHL

Oltfield Exploration Business
Solutions 5.A.

Rempatrol Well Services S.A.
Palslasi S.A

Rompatiot Buigara JSGC
Aempetrol Moldova 5A

TRG Palral Ticarat Anonim Sirksli
KMG Rompatrol Services Canter
Midia Marine Terminal S,R.L.
Byron Shipping SAL

Aominsare Vatves lallo SRL
Uzina Termoeleclrica Midia 5.4,
Global Sacurity Systams 8.A

Sune-17 30-une-15 #dune-17 3~June-16

usp

327,463,654
408,171
70,913

2,156

303,358
8,406
16,626,827
79,347 626
7,911,827
65,750
192,618
10,054
315
8,353,430
52,809

Sales and othar ravenyas

ust RON
388,819,591 1,307,671,175
421,757 1,633,206
68,385 283,049
1,983 8,806
285,258 1,210,845
9,048 25,570
16,454,880 £6,385,182
47,224 844 316,716,048
- 31,580,057
- 262,441
180,472 788,823
1,130 40,290
5,024 12,577
6,931,451 33,342,714
54,773 210,787
LZE2531.37)

A0N

1.551,873,397
1,683,443
272,950

7915

1,058,777
36,315
65,839,314
186,497,167

720,354
44,425
20,053

27,066,887

218,628

LASIL039,607

English translation bs for Information purposes only, Romaenian language taxt s the oificial 1axt for Siomizsion.
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24, RELATED PARTIES (continuad)

Nama of related party

KazMunayGos Trading
AG

Rominaerv S.A.

KM Intamational NV,
KMGE Rampatol S.R.L
Qiifeld Exploration
fusineas Selutions S.A
Aempatrol Wall Sanvices
SA

Hompstrot Finangial
Graup S.R.L.

KMG Rompatrof
Senvces Conler

Midia Marine Tamminal
S.AL

Byron Shipping SAL
Aominsarv Valvas tallo
SRL

Uzina Temmoslactdca
Midia S.A,

Global Secusity Systams
SA.

“Tangizcheviol LLP

Nature of transaction

Purchaas of crudas olf

Acriisiion and
maintenancs of fixad
|ssats

Managemont services
Managemani sanicas

Managamanl sarvices
Interest on loan
Interast on loan

Shared sanvices

Handiing
servicas/Transit
Shipping sernvicas

Valvas

Acquisiion of uillities

Szcudty and protection
sanvices
Liquafied Patrolaum Gas

30dupet7
usn

805,335,551

34,781,902

4,736,381
12,618,554

11.781
158,414
537,209

3,167,667
8,468,358

46,785
13,362,452

1,565,275
8,112

888,808,331,

Pur: nd oiher costs
3 al] 30-June-17
usp RON

817,797,738 3,013,848,852

19,580,838 158,829,377
760,700 18,805,265
13,322,350 50,366,955
29,572 47,024
15,807 632,308

- 2,144,270

. 12,643,304
10,063,077 33,801,451
418 .

47,605 188,742
11,331,313 53,336,227
1,568,532 6,247,785
2,878,144 32378

BIT305.804 3.UE0.RISOE

Oluna-16
RON

3,284,239,571

78,158,117

3,036,693
3,176,160

118,027
63,604

-

40,170,753
1,668
188,618

45,228,936
6,260,785
11,488,112

&:502,120,662

The nature of sale iransactions consiets In sale of patroleum products, Sales o related perias include

sales taxes.

The Ministry of Public Finance of Flomania (“MFPR") held 44.6959% of the shara in Rompetrol Ralinars
SA from September 2010 unfll July 2012. Slaring July 2012, through a Goverment Ordinance, the
sharehelder became Ministry of Economy Trade and Business Environment {"MECMA") untll May 2013,
when {cllawing MECMA reorganization the new halder bacame Minisiry of Economy (*ME"). Later it was
renarmed the Ministey of Energy, Small and Madium Enterprises and Businass Environmen!. Now, i Is
named the Minlstry of Energy.

As a result, MFPR, MECMA, ME and Other Authorities are considered to be 2 rafaled pary of the Group.
No enlitias in the Group have had any transactions dusing the period since MPFR, MECMA and ME
baceme a relatad panty or had balances as of peried end, other than thesa arising from Romanian fiscal
and legislalive requiremants, with MFPR, MECMA, ME and Other Authoiities in Romenla.

English translation Iz for informaticn purposas only. Romanlzn language ot is the offclz! taxd lor submission
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25.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calcrlation of the baske earnings par share atiibutabls {o the ordinary equily holders of the parant is
based on ths following data:

Juno 30,3017  Juno 30,2010 June30,2017  June 30,2016

usp uso RON RON
Enminps
Profit f{Loss) for the year atiributabls to
ordinany eguity holdars of the parent (8,087,780} 21,480,667 (32,282,413} 85,650,328
enlity
Number of shares

Welghted avarags numbar of sharas for
tha pumase of bask samings per shara  44,109,205,726  44,100,205728  44,10%,205,728 44,108,205,726
{s@e Nola 11}

Eamings per share (LS canls/shara}
Basla (0.013) 0.048 {0.072} 0.186

English rpnstation I3 for {nfarmation purpeses oaly, Remanian languega ted k tha oificlal lex for submiseion
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26.CONTINGENCIES

e
a} Relalad io the Parent's oit products technological lending practice 1o othar refinerias, D.G.F.P
Constanta clalmed unrecorded income, exclse, VAT and relaled panalties tolating RON 47.7 millicr (USD
11,95 millon) to be pald by the Parent based on an Inspection carried out in 2003, Thase claims (the
lepel effecls) were suspended by the local court for admission. Subsequently, a secand suspension has
been issued by ths fiscal authorities (.6.5.C. - AN.AF.} uniil the final sentenca regarding the related
criminal casa, as the fiscal authorty beligvas that this matter is now to be deall as part of the eriminat
investigailon started by the General Proseculor Olfice {ses first case in nole 27). The management Is
contidant that the Parent is able to defend #self and the likelihoad of a negative oatroma ia considared
remote.

b} In 2001, the Parent processed crude olf for another refinery for which it ariginally raised excise
invalees. Howevar due 1o the law prevailing at tha tims, such Invoices ralsed by tha Parant ware
challanged by the respaciive rafinery and the courls held at the lime that the Company Is not to lasue the
axcise inveless and therelore the Parent cancelled such Inveices. Tha Parent is naw chailanged for such
revarsals by 0L.G.F.P. Constanla, which concluded niot to acknowledge the canclusions of the courd
decislon and hale the Paren! lfable for paying such exclsas; the Pargnt appeated the tax audil, which is
now being suspandad as for the same reason deseribed in the paregraph above. The amount notad In
the minutes Issued by D.G.F.P Consianta is FON 2.5 Million (USD 2.38 milflen). The managsment Is
confident that the likelihood of reversal of the eadler court decision Is very low. No changses were Incurred
in 2617,

©) ANAF - DGAMC slaried in October 2016 the genaral fiscal swdit refarting to the liscal pariod 2011-
215, taxes covered: incoma tax, VAT, WHT and excigas. As of dala of thase financial stalemants, the
lax gudits are In progress, thare are no affeclive Informalion regarding any potential flscal findings or ax
adjustments. The Company subject to general fiscal audit fs Fompatre! Rafinare SA.

English Irmnslation s for Injormation purpases enly Bomanlen language (axt s tha ofiicial lad for submizalon
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A7.LEGAL BIATTERS

Litlgation with the State Invelving eriminal charges

Starting with March 22, 2005, a number of ciminal investigations have been inilialed against cerlain
eurrent and formar shareholdess direclors, managers and extemnal censars of 8.C, Rompetrol Rafinara
S.A. ("RRC" and olher individuals; these investigations were camied out at a formal lavel and
materialized into diflerent criminal proceeding activities (including specialized judiclal exparise), cumently
undergeing the criminal prosecution phase. At the present date, only ane of the directors of the Company
wha Is invalved In the Investigation, stllt works for KMG Intemational Group.

The charges brought agalnst the defendants upon the initiation of the criminal investigalions ware:

a} failure to hlfill the investment commitments undertaken under the privafization contract
conceming the Parant;

b} unlawi statement of excises and other dabls o the state budgst;

¢} incorract kaaping of accounting registrles regarding the technologleal producls operations
undariaken at the of! terminal owned by Oil Terminal, charges which concem events that took
place during April 2001 - October 2002;

d} adoption of GEQ no. 118/2003.

Considering the ahove mentionad charges, a freazing orders were Issued by DICOT and recaivad an 8-
10 May 2016 {the "Orders”}, wharahy Il was decided to mpnse 2 selzure (freazing of the assets) on the
movable and immovable assels of KMG intemational N.V,, Rompstrel Reflnare SA and Oiilield
Exploration Business Sclutions SA {former Rompatrol SA) as well as ovar the shares these compenlag
held in their Romanian subsidiaries.

Tha fragzing of tha assels doaes notimpact the inventories, racelvables and tha bank account of
Rompatra! Rafinare and this allows to the compaiy to continue nomally the day by day cperations.

The campanies airaady submiited the challanges againat the Ordars within 3 days (namely on 12 and 13
of May 2016).

After fwo hearings In front of the Constanta Coun, the case was assigned 1o be settled by the Supreme
Coun, who rejected In full the challanging submitted by Group's subsidiaries.

Msanwhile, the companies also challenged on May 30, 2016 the Orders fo the supsrior proseculor. The
submisgion was rejected in December 2016,

Consldering the nature of the allegations submiited by DIICOT, the KMG! companies appliad for a motion
of digjolning {cerere de disjungera In Romanian) in order to have two diferent cases which shall setiie the
allegations for RRC' privatization and post-privallzation peried ~ one file and a second ane for the
allegations relaled to lhe Issuance of the bonds by RRE (OUG 118/2008). No reply receivad yat fram
DICOT on this toplc.

Since the KMGI companiss had no capacily in the fila till 2016 and it ssems the enlire process {with miner
exceptions) of gathering the evidences by DIICOT have bean perdomed bofore May 2016, the Companles
submitied on April 7, 2017 thalr own application for, on the one hand, evidences 1o be attached (o the file
in order to defend and one the other hend to be redone some evidences {such as sxperisa repor)
perfarmed bafore 2016. No reply receivad yat from DIICOT on this topic,

On Apiil 12, 2017, the companles submitted also thelr application by which they asked the dismissals of
the allagations regarding the QUG 24B/200 {regarding the privatization of RRC) and QUG 118/2003 {the
lssuance of bonds) taking Inte cansideration the rasent Constituliona! Court decision no. §8/2017 by which
the Court seltled that the leglsfative process, as wall as the aspects regarding the opportunity andior
lawiulness of a deed Issued aither by the Pardizment and Govemment cannet be subject of a criminal inguiry
and the Constitutlon provides other loverages assigned 10 ather public authorities lo control such kind of
things. No reply recelved yat from DICOT on this topic.

Engiish transiation 13 torinfarmation pomesaa only, Romantan |enguans 1exd is the oficial taxt tor submisslan,
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27.LEGAL MATTERS {continuad)

Finally, on May 10 and June 28, 2017 the Companies submitied their Statement of clalms against the
DHCOT allsgations for the following topies: Libya receivables, RAC privalisation and post-privaiization
period, privatization of Vegs refinery and the Issuance of bonds (OUG 118/2003), Intra-company's
lransactions and budgatary taxes and dutias.

On July 17, 2017 DIECOT issued an Ordinance which generally keeps the approach of the Orders issued
In 2016 but le! tha civil partins namaly, hinlstry of Enargy and Minlstry of Finance, to provide {he figures for
the allsged damage they Incurred as well as the evidences for supporting any aileged damage,

On July 22, 26 NC KMG and KMG1 submitted to the Homanian authorities the Nolice of investmant
Dispule based on the Agreement belween ke Government of Romania and the Govemmen! of the
Hepublic of Kazakhstan, the Agrasment betwesn the Govammen! of the Kingdom of tha Netherands and
the Govarnment of Romania and the Enargy Chartar Trealy.

The submisslon of the aforamantioned Notine raprasents tha first procedurat step that might giva rise (o
an arbitration dispule between an Investor and the country where the investment was mads. Basad on
our knowlzdge the Romanlan authorliies received this Notice on July 25, 2018, According to the above-
mantionad treaties starting with July 25, 2016 commenced a 3 {threg) to & {sbx) month perlod within the
KMG companias and Romanian Slate may reach a setilement. Romanian authoritiss through the Ministry
af Finance Issusd a response in Ocleber 2016 cifing that all steps took by the Romanian slale, through its
public authorities, were conducted in compliance with the agreements put forward by KMG and KMGI in
the notification of amigable seitlement of the dispule.

Allgr the expiration of this period, should a selllsment balwaen KMG and Homania fafl 1o be teachad, the
case could be referred to and seftled by the Intemational Cenlre for Settlement of Iavestment Dispules
under World Bank, headquarterad in Washington, D.C or to the Atbitration Insiitute of the Stockholm
Chamber of Commarce, In line with the provisions of the treatles and with KMG companias’ amvisaged
rolisfs and measures to he oblalned.

English transialion Is far infammation pumposes saly, Romandun longuags led iz the offiela] o for subméselan
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Z7.LEGAL MATTERS {continued)
Litigation on Tax Assesaments received by Rompetral Rafinare §.4.in 2012

In March 2012, the National Agency for Tax Administration lssued o Rompetro! Rafinare SA a Genaral
Tax Audil Raport covering the period 2007-2010 and an Assesament Declsion for Payment of RON 48
millian, cut of which hal represents additional principal tax llabifities and tha ather half reprasents late
payment interest and penaliies.

Buoth the Report and the Declsion ware challengad subjact to & prior adminlstrative appeal.

The main arguments put forward by Bompatrol Rafinare for its administrative appeal were: it had used
and banafilted from the managemant and advertising sarvice referrad to; it has ralaled justifying
documents thal were nol taken into consideration by tha lax acthorities: and the Tax authorilies did not
consklar tha definition provided by the Fiscaj Code and #ts Application Nonns, as well 2s, applicabls,
Doubls Tax Treatles and Commantaries to the OECD model convantions as regards definition of royaitles
versus services.

Alirough Rempetrol Rafinase considars that it has met all technical requirements and it is challanglng all
the ems Included In the report issued by the National Agency for Tax Administration, thera Is a chance
that Rompelrol Rafinare may not recovar the amoun! in whela or par, based on the high ambigulty in
respect of the legislation and the court practice In a sImilar case in Romania. Therafore, a provisian has
bean recagnized for an overall armwunt of USD 15 miltion, out of which USD 11 million was expansed
during 2012,

Tha maln courl case staried by Bompalro! falinara SA against the assessment has basn setiled on 27
of October 2014 by Constanta Court of Apeal which pertially annulled both Decision ne. 33 and the
Assessment Declslon for payment of RON 48 million. (squivalent USD 14.1 milllon).

Constanla Cotirt of Appeal held llable the National Agency for Tax Adminlstration for paying back
Romgatrol Rafinare approximately HON 21 million {equivalent USD 8.2 mitlion) and i pursus o audit
again for epproximately AON 9.7 miflon (eguivalant of USD 2.8 mitlion).

This Declslon s not final, both Rompetral Rafinare and National Agency for Tax Administration appestad
against | In front of the Suprame Court of Justice. The raport of tha Suprame Court of Justice has been
communicated to Rompatrol Rafinare SA, eccording 1o which baolh appeals have bsen admitled In principla,
A second temm is esiablished on 30 March 2017, in ordar to check the appeals under the olher aspacs. At
this tesm, the Suprame Court of Justice established the first hearing term on September 25%, 2017 (it fs the
first tanm for which the paries will receive a subpoena).

On February 28, 2011 Rompelro! Rafinare S.A. won & court case against The Romanian Governmant
and The Mintstry of Environment which required tha Aomantan autheritias to allocate to Rompstrol
Hatlnare an additional number of 2,577,938 CO2 amission certificales far the enlire parod 20082012,
This first dacislon Issued by the Constanla Court of Appaal was challanged by the Minlstry of
Environment and The Romanlen Government but the appeals were rejacted by the Supreme Count of
Justice on Qctobar 30, 2012 and the first count decision became final,

According to the current Romanian and Europaan [egistation, the cedilicatas ohinlnad for 2068 - 2012
period may be owned and used also for the next parlod of 2043 - 2020, The marke! value for & CO2
emisslon ceriflcate was EUR 5.4 par cortificala as of Decamber 20186.

Conslderng that the Ministry of Environmen! and the Romanlan Government did not Tulill with the Court
dacislon accarding to the deadline, Rompetrol Rafinare 84 started a court clalm against tham, having as
object damages in amount of EUR 38 million.

English trenstation iz (or information purpasas only. Romanian lengumge taxd & tha afficla) taxd for submission.
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27.LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

On April 24, 2014, the coutt rejected the Rompetral' s claim on a reason that “is lack of object”. Hompetro!
appealed the Decislon In front of the Suprema Cour. The fHrst hearing is sel by the Supreme Court for
Juna 3%, 2016. Last hearing was on 21.10.2016, when the court admitted bolh appeals formulated by
Rompetrdl Ralinare and the Minisiry of Environment, and send the causs lo the same first instance
(Conslanta Court of Appeal} for rairial,

Additionally, Rompaisol Rafinere launched a new legal enforcement procadurs in front of the Constanta
Court of Appesl, based on soma naw and much clesrer provisions of law,

On July 6, 2015 Constanta Court of Appeal admilted partially the claim and Hned the reprasentative of the
Governmenlt and Minlsiry of Environment for non-parormance of the enforcement of the decision by
which the Company recelved & number of 2,577,240 CO2 emission cerificates. The declslon Is subject to
appeal.

As & consequence, on July 281, 2015 the Government Dacislon np, 611/2015 was issued, providing the
modification ol the Nalional Plan initlally approvad by Govamment Beacision no. 50/2008 and increasing
the aflocation of the Company with the amount of 2,577,940 CO2 emission cadificates; this decision is
due to be tully and effeciively implemented in the following 120 days, subject to an approval from
Europaan Commission, from the perspactiva of camplying wilh stale ald ragulations. The Govemment
Decision has still no! been implamanted,

On Qctobar 27, 2015, in order lo secura all ts righls and the full enforcement of the above-mentioned court
and govemment dacisfons, Rompetrol Rafinare filed a Jasl coud enforcemant procedure, having as object
10 abilge the defendants to pay the countar value of the 2.577.940 CO2 emission certificates (i.e. 40 million
Eurc in lolal) in case they will fsil to implement in due time the Inftial and Fnai court dacision and tha
Govemment Declsion no, §11/2015. On February 3 2018, the Constanta Court of Appeal daclded to
pustpone the procedure untl the Supreme Gourt wilt pranaunce a deglslon in another related case {Case
lila no. 817/36/2013), regarding the appeal of Rompatrol Mafinara agalnst court declsfen to reject our claims
&s lack of object, with last hearing term for October 21% 2018, whan the court admitted both appaals
farmulaled by Rampeired Rafinare and the Ministey of Environmant, and sent the cause lo the same lirst
instanca {Constanta Court of Appeal) for retiial. First hearing for reltial was set on September 7, 2017,

Hompalrol Raflnare requested the resetting the cause of pending, and the first hearing took place in the
Censtanla Court of Appast an April 6%, 2016. At this hearing term, Rompstrol Rafinara request to raset
ths cause of pending was dismissed. Following the finalization of Ihe casa fle no. 917/36/2013 by a
decision daled Oclobar 21%, 2016, & new reopening request was submitted In Case file no. 712/368/2015,
which was examined on January 11, 2017, when Rompatrol Rafinare request to resat the cause of
prending was also dismissed,

Litigntion between Rompetral Downstresm SRL snd BATE (Bucharest public transpart company)

in 2011, {ollowing & pubtic tendar organized by RATE, the biggest public transport company in Romania
sarving Bucharest melropolitan araa, Rempetrol Downsiream was awardad with a 4-year frame
Agraement (dividad in 4 yearly conlracls 2011-2015) for dalivery of fusl for RATE flael through an
integrated system,

Rompeirol Downstraam timely and fully observed its obligation to supply HATE with nseded quantities of
fuel during those 4 years, howsver the relalad 1T system was Implemenled on & graduat basls tit 16 unlit
Septembar 2015.

On 16 October 2045 RATB submitted to Coud the claim lor damagss In amount of BON 62.4 milfion
(approximately USD 15 million). The amaunt concems the anlorcemant of penalty clause In amount of
15% of frame contract turnover for nof chserving the contractual abligatians relating to the implamentation
of the IT system.

On 27 Cclober 2015, basad an tha tendar book terms and conditions, RATE asked the enforcement of
the bank {etter quarantes provided by DWS for the armnount of BON 5.7 milllon.

English transkalion is lor informetion purpasas only. Remanlan language tex bs tha offcial text for subraisslon,
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27.LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

Tha {irst hearlrg took place on Fabruary 23, 2016. The dacislon was refeased on April 22, 2016 and the
Court rejected the clalm of RATB for nat perdorming the preliminary maendatory formalities. The decislon is
subjact of appeal. The Bucharast Court of Appeal admitted both Parties appeals, repealed the 1 court
decislon and sent the file again to the 12 court (Bucharest Tribunai) for judgement on the merils of the
pasa.

Besides the claim above mentionad, in June 2016 Rompatrel Downstream recalved another 3 similar alaims
in an aggregate amount of RON 136 milllon by which RATB asked the sama amount for each contractual
year (Cases no, 2-4). The Gompany challangad the elalms within the provided lern. On November 14 the
Court ruled in the Company’s favour and rejecled the RATB' ¢laim as being non-admissibie as a result of
admittance of the precedural objection raised by the Company (this decision balng subject of appeal). RATB
filed in Ihe appeal against thy 1# court decision and the appeal was rajacted by the superior count an the
20 of April 2017, The declision In this case Is final,

Tha others two filas had the following hearfngs: Cctober 25, 2016 whan the Bucharest Tribunal admilted
the Company' request and suspended the judgmant of the file until the dats when the Cass no. 1 shall ba
irravocably sallled by tha court {Casa ng. 3); and November 1, 2016 when the Court rufed In the
Company's favour and rejecied the RATE' claim as being non-admissible as a resull of admittance of the
procedural nbjection reisad by the Company {Case no. 4} {this case passed to tha appeal stega and the
first hearing was scheduted for January 25, 2017).The Court rejected the sppeal as groundlsss. The
declsion Is flnal.

Litigation between Hempetral Aafinars and Navoder City Hall

Gn November 18%, 2015, it was finalized the audil of the tocal taxes, done by Navadari City Hali, forthe
pariod of 2012-2014. The only nen-tompliant finding refers to revaluation of buildings made by the
company on 31.12.2008 and 31.12.2011%, namely that bacause the ravaluation was not made far sl fixed
asgels accounted for in tha account 212 *Construction”, in thelr view it was mada without chserving the
accounting regulation stipulatad by OMFP 3055/2009, As a rasult, the inspection team considerad ihat for
yaer 2012, certain bulldings were not revalued within three years of the previous ravaluation and applled
a higher local fax rate of 10% for the bulldings, and as a consequence assessad en additional tax on
bulldings and penaliies related In total amount of 20.4 mil RON, out of which tha principal is RON 11.2
miltion and the penallies and accessories are FION 8.2 million (calcuiated untl the date of the rapn).

Against the Imposing Declslon lssued by Navedari City Hall, the company has been filed an admintstrativa
complalnt with the fiscal authorities. The administrative enmplaint fBed by RRG was dismissed as balng
lack of object, without any judgment pronaunced on the merits of the case. This solutlon is based on
Navodari Local Councll Detlslon no.435Mecamber 219, 2015, under which Rompetra) Rafinare has obtain
tha annulment of 73% of panalities.

Rempatrof Rafinare submittad in caurt the challenge against this decision, and also another action far pariat
annulment of Navadar Local Declsion no.435/2015 at Conatanta Courl of Appeal, On March 16t 2017
Canstanta Caurt of Appeal dlsmissed the challenge submiited by Rompetrol Flafinara against the decision
Issuad by Mavedard Glly Hall, The solutlon will he appealed,

The second action, submitad by Rampetrol Rafinare for parifal annulment of Navodart Local Courcil
Decision no. 435/0ecember 214, 2015 was admitted by Constanta Tribunal. This sclution has been
appealed by Navodari Local Concll on Conatanta Courl of Appeal, where fhe first hearing term is s81 on
January 16%, 2017, whan the appaal was rejectad.

Rompetrol Ralinare also iiled the requast for suspension the enforceable efiects of the Imposing decislon,
pursuant to the Law 554/22004 and Government Ordinance 92/2009, file no.788/36/2015. Tha statemant
of defense was submlited by Navodari City Hall end tha fitst herring term was established for February
22, 2016. The cour granted Rompetrol Rafinare claim and suspended the effects and the entorcement
of the Tax Inspection Report and Tax Dacislons Issued by Nevadar City on November 189, 2015, The
solufion was appealad by Navodari Gity Hall. The case Is currently pending count investigation procaesdings
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wilh the Supreme Court of Justice, The first hearing term belore the Suprems Court was ot yel been
schedulad,

27.LEGAL MATTERS (continued)

Litigations batwean Rompetrol Refinare apd Nationat Company —~ Constanta Maritime Port
Admini lon S.A.

In consideration of the violation by Gompania Nationata Adminlstratia Portudlor Maritime Constanta
(Natlonal Company of Constanta Maritime Ports Adminisiration) of the legal provisians regulating lts
aetivity, in the sense that it does not ensure the malntenance In oparational paramelars ol the Midia porl
found under lis administration, so as to ensure the safely of navigation, the praservation of al least the
technical features deslgned for tha por, the sala aceess and operation of ships, the company inltiated
several legal remadies against it, as lolfows:

a) Complaini against Nationat Company “Administratia Periuritor Maritime * SA for viclating tha provisions
of arl. 8 of tha Law no 21/1886 which caused fo Rarnpstrol Falinare SA damages consisting of USD 1.87
millllon - dredging expendituras; USD 3.3 million - commaercial loss:; the complain! Is in course of analysis
&t the Competition Council, By means of the lodged complain, the Compaliion Counclt was ashead to
acknowledge the violation by Adminislralia Porturilor Maritima of the provielons of art. 8 of Law na,
2111898, 1o sanction the sald company in accordance wilh the law and to render it liatle 1o pariarm,
subject to legal ferms and conditions, incluslvely in terms of cost incurrence, the obligations resling upon
it as adminisirater of port areas and of suppliar of guods and services specific lo tha exploitation of
natlonal martime areas, in particular with raspect lo Midla Forl.

b Gourt claim against the Constanta Port Administration tar Rompalrol Rafinare datnages ralated 1o
tower port drafts during January - May 2015 (USD 0.B5 mil] and for restitutien of dredging expanses (1.7
mil USD}. The total amcunt in RON is today RON 10 million (USD 2.8 miflion), The case Is pending on
Constanta Tribunal, with next hearing for May 18, 2017, At this date, tha Gourt partially adrlited the
cialm ol the plaintiff Rompatrot Rafinare SA agains| the delendant Gonstania Port Administration and
cbliged the defandant to pay o the plaintilf: 8) The equivatent In lai, al the sxchanga rate euroflen | fixed
by the Natlonal Bank of Romania, on the day of payment, the amount of EUR 1,570,000 reprasanting
dredging expenditures pald by Rompatrol Ralinare SA , during the periad 58 April 2015 - 11 May 2015,
b) The amoun! of 76.67 thousand lai - legal casts {of which 73.17 thousand fei - judicial stamp duties and
5,500 lei - the Iees of axperts and dismissals),

On August 22, 2016, a {echnical incident occurred within the DAV plam, resulting In a fire, which was
extinguished by Relinary' stalf and flremen from private and public servizes. Following the aven!, two
peisons, employees of a Group' subsidlary Fominserv SRL suffared bumns and twe persons passed away.
The compalen! guthorilles have initialed Investigations In arder o establish the cirumstances and the
causes that gensrated the technieal Incidant, injury and tha decsase of employaes, In respect of the work
accident, the Prosecutor's Office of tha Gonstanta Court of Appaal office, was notilisd ex offlcio and opened
fila no. 566 / P / 2016, within which have been questionad employess of the 2 companias and was
administarad lechnical expertisa, Following the completion of the erimingl prosegution, Fompstrat Rafinara
5.A., Rominsery SAL and four employees of tha two companies were pul on trial {or: the non-cbservance
af the lagal lsbour health and safaty measures, bodily hamm by negligence, manslaughter and acckiantal
pafiution. At the same time Rompslrol Rafinare S.A. has qualily as civilly llable party. As a resull of the
complatlon of the initial phase of the files, of preliminary chamber procedure, the court decided on
01,03.2017: have baen accepled in pant the applications and tha exceplions mada by the delandants, it
has been found the relative nullity of the indictment no. SB6/F/2016 07.12.2016 from the Prosecutar's Office
tnder the Constanta Court of Appaal, it has baen found tha irrepularily that atiracts the impossibility to Ihe
establishment of the objact or judgment on the Indictment no. SBE/P/2016 of 7.12.2016, proseculos must
comemunicala to the judgs of preliminary roorn whether to maintain the provision relerred to in the judgment
or request the relund case, within & days from the data of the communication of the solution. By the final
conclusion of Preffminary Chamber procedure, no. 328 / 03.21.207 communicated o Roempairol
Rafinare on March 27, 2017 the court ordaring, considering tha Fact that the prasesutor did not reply within
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procedural five days, 1o relum the case to the Prosecutor's Office Court Appeal Constania, linding relative
riullity of the Ordinance no, 586/ P/ 28.11.2016, iregularity of the Indictmant 5867 P 12.7.2016 prosecutor
fallure 10 respond within procedural terms, The selution can he appeslad within three days from the
communication of tha final solution of the preliminary chambar. The Prosacutor's Office Court Appeal
Canstanta made appaal.

On June 21, 2017, the Constania County Gounl admitted the proseculor's appeal, and ordered the ratrial
ol the case by Constanta Court with the observanse of the legal disposilions on the summoning af the
panias, namaly the aggrlevad persans and prosactrior. On the other hand, It was admitied the requast litad
by RIS for the plea of unconstitutionality of cerfain provisions to be selled furthar by the Constilutional
Courl. Tha respactive provisions concem the possibllily to ractify the decument instituling court pracesdings
during the preliminary chamber procadurs,

Also on May 25, 2017 Rompelrol Ralinare and RIS recaived a reply to its challenge submilled against the
Constania Labor Inspecterale Reporis by which the Labour authority maintains the same considerations
challenged by the companles. Against this reply tha companies will it In an application 1o the cour,
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28, COMMITMENTS
Environmental commitmants

The pnncipal activity of Rompetral Ralinare SA (including Vaga Refinery) of ralinery peiraleum products
and Rompetrol Petrochemicals has Inharent effects on the environment in terms of efffusnts into land,
waltar and air. The environmental effects of the Group's aclivities are monitored by specialized authorilas
ant the menagement of the Group.

The Company has recognizaed a provision for restoration cost at He Vans location, sea Nota 18,

As of Juna 30, 2017, and December 31,2016 Rompalrol Rafinare 5.4, has no spaecific environmental
commitments to conform 1o the Integrated Environmental Authorization, except for Vepa obligations,
which have bean provisionad.

At the end of March 2017, Rompelro! Ralinare SA has achioved its ennual compliance wilh ragulatory
requiramants for greenhouse gas emissions {CO2) by returning a number of allawances equivalent to
2016 emissians.

Other commitmants

As of June 30, 2017, Rompelral Rafinare 5.A. has contracted capHal commilmants {or projscls mlated to
capital malntananca, authorizations and compliance with Euro standards sl the Petromidia refingry of
USD 48.5 milfion (2016; USD 55.3 million}. As of June 30, 2017, Bompetrol Downstream S.A.L has
contracled capiial conmitments of USD 4.89 milion {2016: USD 4.27 million).

Rompetrol Downstream S.8.L. has cerain concesslon and renla) agraemants with local autherities and
other companies/individuals in Romanta for plots of land, Usually the conditions for these agreements are
the following: lerms from & to 49 years, fixed or vadabla fess per year. According o thase agreemants,
the approximate amaunt to be paid in 2018 is USD 5.32 million within onae year, and USD 0.32 million
altar one year but nol more than five yaars (USD 5.03 milion in 2017).

Sale and purchase commitmants

As of Junae 30, 2017, the main Group's commilments ralale to Rompetrol Rafinare 5.A. which has non-
gmup commitments for purchasaes of raw materials and utilities of USE 2,480.8 million (2016; USD
2,102.8 miltion) and for sales of patrolzum, petrochemicals products and ulilities sales of USD 1,125.75
mittion {2018: USD 1,724.08 million},

Z2.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

28.1.  Capital risk shanagement

The Group managas iis capital {o ensure that entitias in the Group will ba able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to stakehalders through the optirmization of tha debt and equity
balance. The capital structure of the Group censists of bank debt and sharshelder loans {see Nole 15),
eash and cash equivalents and equily altributable to equity holdars of the parent, comprising issued
capital, raserves and relained aarnings as disclosed in the "Consciidaled Statement of Changes in the
Sharsholders’ Equity”,
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23.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
29.2, Gearing ratio

Tha gearing ratio al the year-end was as follows:

Jung 30, 2017 Degembar 31, 2616

Debl (excliding shereholdar loans end elated parties) 236,917,423 214,051,083
Cash and cash aguivalants {6,807 345) (15,810,998}
Hat debt 230,110,078 188,240,765
Equity {Including sharsholdar joans and refaled padies) 706,041,120 748,878,231
HMat dabt to aaqulty miio 0.33 .27

29.3, Categories of financial Instruments and fair values

Tha aslimated fair values of these Instruments appraximale thalr carrying amounts.

Jong 30. 2017 Bgramber 31, 2016

Financlael apaets

Teerde and other recelvables 371,108,919 263,774,358
Long-term recalvables 1,604,312 1,480,888
Avallabla for sala Investmenls 18,5683 18,583
Darivative tinanclal inatremants 401,671 5340
Cash and eash equivalents 6,807,345 15810288
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 479,840,830 281,089 467
Finznelal {iabltitien

Long-tammn borrowings - 193,182,805
Barivatlve financisl instremanis - 323,130
Short tarm berrewings from shamholdas 233,733,109 268,253,969
Cther non-currem fabllities 190,173 177,110
Trade and othar payables 805,743,933 725,513,525
Shori-lemm barowings banks 236,917,423 20868008
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,276, 584,638 1,208,318,797

Trade and other recelvables ere at nat recoverable valua the following are not consldered as finanaial
agsely:
« Advancas to suppliars
VAT fo be recovered
Prolit tax raceivablas
Other taxes receivablas

Similarly, for trade and othar payables the ollowing are not considared as financial liabifilies:
+«  Advances from cusiomars

Exelses takes

Spaclal found tax for ot produsts

VAT payable

Profit tex payable

Salary taxes payable

Other taxes

Deferred revenues;

Tha estimatad lalr values of these instrumenlts epproximate thelr camying amourils.

English translation Is for Inflonmation purpoass only. Romenian language ted Is the officls! texd for submisslon
85



ROMPETROL RAFINARE SA
NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JURE 30, 2017

{Amuunls in US doflars reprasanting tha functional and prasenfation currency of the Group. Amounls in SON are
providad for Informatton pumposes only {sea Nolo 2a))

29.FINANCIAL INSTRURMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The fair value of the financiel assels and fabllitles are insluded at the amount at which the instrument
could be axchanged In a current transzckion between willing parties, other than in & lorced or flquidation
sale. The following methods and assumplions were used 1o estimata the falr values:
«  Cash and shori-teqmn deposils, irade receivables, trade payables, and other currant lishilitlas
approximate thair carrying amounts iargely due to the shori-lerm malturities of these instruments.
»  Fair value of unguated available-for-sale financlal assels is estimated using appropriate valuation
technigues.
¢ The Group enters Into darivativa financial instruments with varlaus counterparties. As &t 30 June
2017, the markad to markel value of derivative position is for financial instrumants recognized at
fair value,

29.4. Falr value hlararchy

Ths Group uses the Iollowing hisrarchy for determining and disclesing the fair value of financiat
Instrumenis by valuation technigue:

= Lavel 1: quoled {unadjusted) prices In active markets for identicat assels or Habilities;

= Leve! 2 other technlques lor which all inputs whish have a significant effect on tha recorded falr value
are based on observabila markst dala, elther directly or indiractly;

o Leve! 3: techniquas which use inputs which have a slignificant affecl on the recorded falr value that are
not based on ohservabla marke! data.

Juns 30, 2017 Laval 1 Leval2 Laveld
Financlal aasals
Traca and othar receivables 371,108,919 371,108,014 . .
Long-1arm receivablas 1,604,312 1,804,312 - -
Avaliabla for sals investmenls 16,683 18,583 - -
Dativelive inancial instruments 401,671 - 401,871
Cagh and cash aquivalents 8,807,245 807,345 = :
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS ; 401,871 :
Flnancial liabilitles
Shiot term bormwings trom 233,733,908 233,733,109 . -
Other non-cumant lablities 180,173 186173 - -
Trade and othar payobles 805,743,933 805,743,933 - -
Short-term bomowings banks 236,917,423 235817423 - :
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1276504638 1276504638 " P

Degamber31, 2016 Lovell Loval2  Laveld

Fingncisl asgets

Trada and other recelvablos 283,774,358 263,774,358 .
Long-lerm recoivables 1,480,688 1,480,808 -
Avallabia for sals inveslments 18,683 18,583 -
Dernvative financlal instrumants 5,340 . 5,340 -
Cash and cash mruivalenis 15810768 : =
TOTAL FINANCIAL, ASSETS 23,088 107 a340 :
Financlst lisbil\les -
{ong-lamm barrowings 193,182,805 193,188,805 “
Darlvativa financisl instruments 323,130 323,130 -
Short term bemmawings Irom sharshoklars 268,253,865 208,253,969

COther non-currant Habiilles 177,140 177,110

Trads and othar payables 725,513,525 725,513,525

Short-term horrowings banks 20,88 958

TOTAL FINARCIAL LIABILITIES lapaainzor 23130 p

Englich transtalion is for information purpozes ondy, Aomenlan lanpuags taxt is the officlal taxt tor submissien.
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20.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

During the reperling pariod ending 30 Juna 2017 and 31 Decambar 2016, there ware no transiars
beatweern Leval 1 and Laval 2 Iair valug measurements, and no transfers inlo and out of Lavel 3 fair value

maeasuremants.

285 Darivative financhal Instyuments

Tha Graup uses dillerent commodity derivalives as parl of price risk management in trading of cruda oit

and products.

Balan heat:

June30.2017  Dagember31, 2016
Davative financial asset 401,671 5,340
Darvative financla! liabiiity - {323,120
Net position - agset{linbllity) 401,61 {317,7a0)

In tatement:

June 30, 2017 Jupe 80, 2016
Unrealised {gains) - 201,000
:&:!ta ?alﬁon - {gatnMloss - in Cost of _ 201,000
Renlinad {nsses - net 1020475 {1,494,634)
Tota! position - losef{gain) - In Cest of eslea 1.020476 {1,293,534)

Juns 30, 2017 T 16
Derivative assat/(lishillty) 2018 {317,75D) {626,926}
Forex unrealized {hadging of forex) - -
Cash paymants 5,578 1,426,383
Resarves 713,885 {1,117,247)
Darivative agsat/{liabliity) 2017 01,671 {317,730}

Dervative financial Instrumants are Initially maasured at falr valuz on the contract date, and are re-
measured {o falr value at subsequent reponing dates. Changes in the fair valus of derivative financlel
Instruments are recognized in profit or luss as they arse.

296 Market risk

The Group's activitles expose U to a variely of risks including the efiects of: changes in the Intemational
quotations for crude ol and petroleum products, forelgn currency axchange rates and Inleres! rates, The
Group's overall risk managaement main objective is 1o minimize the polential adverss affacts on the
{inancial perdformance af the Group companies.

English franstation Is for Information purposes only Romanden lengusgs taxt ks tha olficl tax for submisslon
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29.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continuad)
29.7. Foreign currency risk management

The Group's functional curreney is Unlted States Dollar {*USD™) and crude oil impons and & significant
part of petrolsumn products sales ara all denominated principally in US Dollars, therafore, limltad forelgn
currengy exposure arises in this context. Ceraln assels and fabilities are denominated in othar
wurrencles, which are translated at the prevailing exchange rale at each balance shaet date. The
unrealized differences are charged or cradied Lo the Income slatemant but do not affect cash flows,
Group Traasury Is responsible for handfing the Group ferelan currency ransaclions.

29.8. Interest rate risk management

Intarast rate prica risk Is tha risk that the value of a financial Instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
markst [meras!t mles relative to the interest rate that applles to the financial instument, Interast rate cash
flow risk is tha risk that the Interest cost will fluctuate over tima, The Group has long-term deb! and short-
tenm dabt that Incur interast at fixed and varlable interest rales that axposes the Group to both fair valug
and cash llow fsk. Datails of ihe interes! rale terms, which apply {6 the Group's borrowlngs, are provided
i Notes 12 and 15.

20.9. Commodity price risk

The Group is alfected by the volatility of prices of crude oll, ¢it products and by reflnery margins. iis
operating activitias raquire ongolng purchase of crude ofl to be usad in ts production ae well as supplies
to its clients. Due lo significantly increased volalilily of cride oil, the manzgement daveloped a haedas
policy which was presented to the Group's Board of Direclors and was approved in most slgniflicant
aspecls in 2010 and with some further amendments in Fabruary 2011, Following this approval, tha Group
started on January 2011 {o hedge commoditias hald by Bompetrol Raflnars and in 2014 it was
implemented a hedging program In Rampetrof Downstream.

Agcording to the hedga policy, on the commadity side, the tiat prica risk for priced Inventories above a
ceriain thresheld (caliad base operating stock in case of Rompetrol Refinery, benchmark slock for
Rompelrol Dawnstream) is hedged using future contracts treded on [CE Exchange and some OTC
instrumenis. Tha base operaling siock is tha equlvalent of priced stocks that ars held at any moment In
lime in the Group, hencae price flacluations will not affect the cash-fiow. Based on the expectations af
cruda olf price Increase, at the beginning of 20186, the hadge strategy for 2016 was sqilt betwean fulures
and options while a cartain quanlily above base operaling stock was laft unhedged.

Flisk managemant activilles ara separated into physleal (purchasa {rom thisd parilas and KazmunayGas
Group, and sales {o third pariies and intarcompany} and paper tradas {for economic hedging purposes),
Each physical transaction Is covered threugh a related {utures positlon according to the axposure
parameters sal by management {i.e. based on physical quantities sold or purchased). Tha Group sells or
buys tha equivalent number of future conptracts. This paper rade is done only to hedge the risk of the
Physleal Trads and not to gain frorm the trading of these instrumenis.

29,70, Credit risk

Credit risk 1s the risk that a counteparty will not mest its obligations under a financial Instrument or
cusiomer conlract teading 1o a financial loss. The Group Is expased o eradit risk from 1ts opemling
activitias primarily for trade reeeivables and from its financing activities including bank dapostls, forgign
exchange trangactions and othar financial instrumaents,

Trade receivables

The retalt cperational segment Is exposed to credil risk. Quistanding cusiomer recelvablas are regularly
monitored. Sales to KazMunayGas Trading AG, a related panty represent 26% of the Group's revanues,
The requirement lor impaimant is analyzed on a ragular basis, being uaderiaken on an individual basis
as well as collectively on the basis of rgeing.

Eng¥zh transigtion is for inlormation purposes only, Pemarian languaga tax is e oflicial las for submlssion,
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20.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)
Financial instruments and bani deposits

Credit risk from balances wilh banks and tinancial institutions is managed by the Group's \reasury in
accordance with the Group's policy.

30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Facility granted to Rompetrof Rafinare S.A. by Rompetrol Well Services S.A. in amount of RON 12 million
has been extended until September 10, 2017.

Facility granted to Rompetrol Ralinare S.A. by Rompetrol Well Services S.A, in arfount of BON 7 million
has been extended until August 14, 2017.

Facility granted Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. by Bompetrol Well Services S.A. in amount of RON 3.1 million
has been extended until Seplember 3, 2017,

Facilities granted to Rompetrol Rafinare S.A. by Bancpost in amount of EUR 30 million, respeclively EUR
27.96 million have been extended untll July 31, 2018,

On July 17, 2017, Rompetro! Rafinare SA and the affiliales KMG Internalional NV and Oilfield Exploration
Business Solutions SA received an ordinance issued by DICOT which mandates the cordinuation of the
criminal investigation of deeds altributed to the 1998-2003 petiod and of the grounds for the company's civil
liability for part thereof.

As before, the company will further cooperate with the authorities in a lransparent way with the aim that
ihe invesligations complete in due course and in full abservance of the company's rights.

This new procedural deed does not atfect the daily activity of Rompetro! refineries the operations of which
are being carried out in the normal course,

However, Ihe company continues to work with its local and international legai advisors to use all legal
means 1o protect its investments, aclivities and current operations as well as ils reputation.

The company will provide further information once there will be clarifiad the aspects related to the
company's liabifity for the deeds currenily pending investigation.

The national oil and gas company of Kazakhstan - KazMunayGas became in August 2007 the major
shareholder, and in 2009 the sole sharsholder, of The Rompetrol Group (currently named KMG
International NV) that the company is a part of.

English franslation is tor (nfortnation pusposas enly. Fomantan language text Is tho olficlal taxt for submission,



